
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

February 11, 2019 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. Black History Month.

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Davis Property Rezoning.

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on any other
matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing section of the
agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public comment on the
item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting, except during the Public
Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are limited to a maximum of three
minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the Council on a single matter. The Town
Council may elect to take no action on the matter addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for
further consideration at a future Council meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition.
Copies of the Town Public Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

1. Gary Whitehurst- Excessive noise from the Moose Lodge.
2. Valerie Tyson-Update on Space Dedication for Ronnie "Run" Cox.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed by
the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the Consent
Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes:
 January 14, 2019, Regular Council Meeting.

2. Budget Amendment.
3. Release of Delinquent Fire Inspections Fees.
4. Audit Contract amendment for fiscal year 2017 – 2018.
5. Mellon Downs -  Lots 16, 17, 18, 20, 22, 23, 24, 26, 39, 42, 43, 44, 46, 48, 51, 53, 54, 55, 56,

72, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86 and Parcels 82642 & 82885 (HOA Property) in Phases 2A
and 2B - Set Public Hearing for Annexation for March 11, 2019.

6. Worthington Road Corridor Study – Professional Services Agreement.
7. Approval of Contract with Vaughn & Melton Consulting Engineers for Disaster Management,

Recovery, and Consulting Services.



 

 

X. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Resolution authorizing amendment to existing contract for creation of Parks and Recreation 

Capital Improvement Plan. 

XI. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Approval of Task Order 25 with the Wooten Co. for Winterville Manual of Standard Designs and 
Details Update. 

2. Appointment to Recreation Advisory Board. 
3. Clarification of Speed Limit Ordinances on Mill Street, Church Street, and Reedy Branch Road. 

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS. 

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS. 

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: Update on Projects Currently Underway: 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Resurfacing of the Hillcrest Basketball Courts (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 SRF Application (Sewer Rehabilitation) (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 

XV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER. 

XVI. CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(5) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by 
the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public 
body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a 
closed session and nothing herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that 
otherwise would be open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a 
participant. The public body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling 
or settlement of a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Discuss the 
price and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by 
purchase, option, exchange, or lease.) 

XVII. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – Monday, February 18 – 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 
Room. 

2. Special Called Council Meeting/Electric Rate Workshop - Tuesday, February 19 – 6:00 pm - 
Town Hall Executive Conference Room. 

3. Board of Adjustment Meeting – Tuesday, February 19 – 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
4. Town & State Dinner – Wednesday, February 20, 2019 – 2:00 pm to 7:30 pm at Raleigh 

Convention Center. 

  

2



5. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Public Input Meetings:
 Monday, February 25, 2019 – 11:00am - Downtown Walking Tour (meet at Town Hall).
 Monday, February 25. 2019 – 6:00pm – 8:00pm - Public Visioning Session at Town Hall.
 Tuesday, February 26, 2019 – 6:00pm - 7:30pm - Presentation & Open House at Town Hall.
 Wednesday, February 27, 2019 – 8:00am - Coffee Talk at the Depot.

XVIII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the meeting should 
notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

3



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 

Item Section: Proclamation 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Black History Month – February 2019. 

Action Requested: Approval of Proclamation. 

Attachment: Proclamation Honoring Black History Month. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC:  1/30/2019  FD:    TM: 2/6/2019  Final: 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

 

Approval of the attached Proclamation Honoring Black History Month. 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Approval of Proclamation. 

 

4



 

PROCLAMATION 
HONORING BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

 

WHEREAS, much of the Town of Winterville's honor, strength and stature can be attributed to 
the diversity of cultures and traditions that are celebrated by the residents of this great region; and 

WHEREAS, February has been designated as Black History Month in which we pause to 
reflect on the contributions of the African American community; and 

WHEREAS, African Americans have played significant roles in the history of North Carolina 
State's economic, cultural, spiritual and political development while working tirelessly to maintain and 
promote their culture and history; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of their determination, hard work, intelligence and perseverance, 
African Americans have worked tirelessly to maintain and promote a valuable and lasting contribution 
to the Town of Winterville, our state, and nation achieving exceptional success in all aspects of 
society including business, education, politics, economy, culture, science, arts, and history; and 

WHEREAS, this observance affords special opportunity to become more knowledgeable about 
black heritage, and to honor the many black leaders who have contributed to the progress of our 
nation and community; and 

WHEREAS, such knowledge can strengthen the insight of all our citizens regarding the issues 
of human rights, the great strides that have been made in the crusade to eliminate the barriers of 
equality for minority groups, and the continuing struggle against racial discrimination and poverty; and 

WHEREAS, we join with all Americans in celebrating our diverse heritage and culture and 
continuing our efforts to protect democracy for all people, and recognizing the vital achievements of 
our local African American residents; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I do hereby proclaim the month of February 
2019 as Black History Month and express special commendation to the dedicated volunteers who 
have labored so diligently to make this observance a reality in our community; and 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed 
this 11th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Amy P. Barrow, Acting Town Clerk 

5



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Davis Property (parcel 10962) – Rezoning.  

Action Requested: Consider the Proposed Rezoning. 

Attachments: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, and Legal Description, Addresses of Adjacent Property 

Owners. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD        TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

 

Davis Property Rezoning: 

Location: Parcel # 10962 (188 Main Street); Located on the south side of Main Street at its intersection with 

Mill Street. 

Current Zoning: R-6. 

Size: 0.47 Acres. 

Proposed Zoning: Central Business District (CB). 

 Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval to the Town Council at the 1/22/19 

meeting. 

 Notifications were mailed to adjacent property owners on 1/30/2019. 

 Public Hearing Notice published in the Daily Reflector on 1/30/19 and 2/6/19. 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Recommend approval of the Rezoning Request. 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



 

 

 

Description of the item(s) to be presented to the Town Council Members. Please be specific. 

 

Name(s) of Speaker(s): 

(1)______________________________________________________________________________________ 

(2)______________________________________________________________________________________ 

(3)______________________________________________________________________________________ 

My signature below acknowledges that I have read the Town of Winterville Public Comment Policy.  
I agree that as applicant, the speaker(s) named above shall adhere to the Public Comment Policy of the 
Town of Winterville. 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
Signature 

Name of Applicant:______________________________________  Date:________________ 

Address:_______________________________________________  Phone:_______________ 

Town Council Meeting Date Requesting to Provide Comment: ___________________________________ 

 

13



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes 

Action Requested: Approval of DRAFT Minutes 

Attachment: DRAFT Minutes of the Council Meeting listed below 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC:  2/4/2019  FD:   TM: 2/6/2019  Final: tlp - 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 January 14, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Winterville Town Council 
January 14, 2019 – 7:00 PM 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Lt. Chris Williams, Representing Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilwoman Roberson gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: 
Debra Pomeroy with Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Month introduced, Sidney McDuffie 
from South Central High School with Students Against Destructive Decisions (SADD). She talked about 
sex trafficking, exploitation, and events planned. The following Proclamation presented Ms. McDuffy. 
 

15



 
  

16



Mayor Jackson read and presented the following Proclamation Honoring Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. 
Day. 

 
  

17



PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Public Works Director Welborn introduced Blaine Humphrey, Seth Anderson, and Andrew Mitchell with 
Rivers and Associates, Inc. They gave the following presentation on the Water Distribution System – 
Asset Management Plan (AMP). 

 

18



 

 
 

19



 
 

20



 
 

21



 
 

 

22



 

 
 

 

23



 

 
 

 

24



 

 
 

 

25



 

 
 

 

26



 

 
 

 

27



 

 
 

 

28



 

 
 

 

29



 

 
 

 

30



 

 
 

 

31



 

 
 

 

32



 
The Town applied for funding assistance for the development of a Water Distribution System Asset 
Inventory and Assessment. The NC Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) Division of Water 
Infrastructure (DWI) reviewed the funding application and approved the Town of Winterville for grant 
assistance for $150,000. The Town committed to providing a 20% local match ($30,000). The Town 
contracted with Rivers & Associates, Inc. to develop the Asset Management Plan for the Town’s 
distribution system. This plan provides the documentation and support for budget forecasting in future 
budget years. The Plan has four (4) major components: Inventory of Assets, Condition Assessment, 
Needs Prioritization, and a Capital Improvement Plan. The intent of the Asset Management Plan is to 
ensure long-term sustainability of the drinking water utility. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked about the condition of inactive well in Ragland Acres on Cannon Drive. 
Public Works Director Welborn said that we do not use this well regularly. We can use, but it is not 
converted for chloramines. He noted that we would likely run it during the burnout this summer. Well 
has not been used full-time since 2010, but we keep it active in case it is needed. If we were to use full 
time, we would need to make improvements to meet present standards. This well (#3) pumps 200 
gallons per minute (gpm), the Hunsucker well (#2) pumps 275-300 gpm, and the Ball Park well (#4) 
pumps 600 gpm. Mayor Jackson noted that it is good to know that it is functional. Mayor Pro Tem Smith 
asked what the average cost to construct an elevated storage tank. Blaine Humphrey noted that a 
project they have in Pamlico County for a 200,000-gallon tank, the bid came in at $1.3 million. Public 
Works Director Welborn stated we would need a 500,000-gallon tank and that cost would be much 
more. Councilwoman Roberson asked about the usage of the Worthington Road booster pump station. 
Seth Anderson noted that it helps supply water to those areas. Councilwoman Roberson asked if that 
included the new houses in that area. Public Works Director Welborn stated that he sent the Engineer 
all approved subdivisions and they are included in the 10-year plan. Blaine Humphrey stated that 
projected future growth is in the 20-year plan. Councilman Moye commented he was concerned about 
not including the center part of the Town. Town Manager Parker noted those areas are already being 
considered. Public Works Director Welborn noted lines included are main critical lines; with age and 
flow as important factors. 
 
Blaine Humphrey asked that the Council adopt the Water Distribution System - Asset Management 
Plan. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
Water Distribution System – Asset Management Plan. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn gave an update on the 50% reduction completed on all three wells. 
Some problems at the wells corrected to help the situation. He contacted the state but Town must have 
12 months of verifiable data first. We will pump until the end of June. Then Town will increase the 
pumping amount. Town Manager Parker asked if we cannot meet the 50% reduction, what happens. 
Public Works Director Welborn said the Town would have to go back to the previous amount. Town 
Manager Parker noted that staff is working hard to meet the reduction. 
 
Councilman Moore presented guest, Mr. Norman McDuffie, Principal at A. G. Cox Middle School. Mr. 
McDuffie noted the planned renovations to the school and also parking, drop-off, and pick-up plans 
underway. 
 
Councilman Hines introduced guest, Ms. Wendy S. Hazelton, District Court Judge. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Jackson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 

33



Alton Wadford with the Watermelon Festival discussed plans is already underway for the Wednesday, 
August 21 – Sunday, August 25 festival. The goal of the festival committee is to financially self-
sufficient. He ask for a two-part request, $50,000 contribution from the Town by early March, if possible. 
He thanked the Town for their past support, both financial and staff time. The festival is also in in need 
of additional volunteers. They meet monthly on the second Tuesday. Councilwoman Roberson said she 
missed having an opening ceremony last year. Mr. Wadford said they would consider that this year. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve $50,000 out 
of this year’s budget for the Watermelon Festival by March. The motion carried 4-1, Councilman 
Moye opposed. 
 
Councilman Moye said we should wait until the Council looks at the budget. Councilwoman Roberson 
said we should wait but need to allocate the funds. Councilman Moye asked if we would, we do this for 
all non-profits. Councilwoman Roberson said we needed to treat all groups the same. Mayor Pro Tem 
Smith said this is a small amount for the total budget. The festival does more as an advertisement for 
the Town than any other activity. Councilman Moore noted it has the biggest impact on the Town. 
Councilwoman Roberson considers all are an investment; the weight on the value on citizens and 
community, all are valuable. Councilman Moye said I am not against the festival; the right way is to 
treat all the same. Town Manager Parker mentioned that the vision-setting meeting is January 28; other 
budget meetings do not start until April 29. Applications for non-Town groups go out the first part of 
February. Mr. Wadford said the festival started early this year to get ahead of the game. Finance 
Director Bowers said that last year we made a conscious decision to get in the budget early. 
 
Mayor Jackson called for a vote. 
 
The motion carried 4-1, Councilman Moye opposed. 
 
Calvin Henderson with the Winterville Concerned Citizens & Develop, Inc. discussed “Our Community 
2019”. Mr. Henderson was speaking on the eve of the national holiday of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day 
celebrated on Monday, January 21, 2019 across this country. Throughout his brief life, Dr. King’s word 
communicated his vision, his passion, and his faith and the words demonstrated his gift to inspire 
others to follow his lead. Time is always right to do what is right. We have the ability to make positive 
change. Much has changed in Winterville, however, there is still much to change. Have courage to 
have relations. We are here tonight to address street safety, police visibility. Make sure you come up to 
par, make the necessary changes, and stand together. Do what all see as pleasing, regardless of race, 
greed, or color. Finding My Way organization is forming, please think about supporting our 
organization, make all safe. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 

1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 
 December 10, 2018, Regular Meeting. 

 
2. Mellon Downs, Phases 2A and 2B: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of 

Annexation. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the 
consent agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

34



OLD BUSINESS: 
 
New Regional Sanitary Sewer Pump Station - Amendment to Engineering Services Agreement: 
Assistant Town Manager Williams noted that the Town awarded a 20-year low-interest loan from the 
NCDENR – Division of Water Infrastructure – Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) program for 
the construction of a new regional sanitary sewer pump station. The pump station is located off Old Tar 
Road near the new Christ Covenant School and replaces the existing Craft Winds pump station. 
 
The previously approved costs for engineering services provided to date is $294,500. This amount 
included CWSRF application preparation, Engineering Report and Environmental Information 
Document preparation and submittal, engineering survey, design, construction administration, 
construction inspection, geotechnical services, easement surveying/mapping, and CWSRF loan 
administration. The subject project has had change orders resulting in additional work and related time 
extensions for the contractor to complete. Due to the additional work and time, the consulting engineer 
has been required to perform additional construction observation and contract administration duties. 
 
The original cost for previously approved engineering services provided to date is $294,500. The 
additional fee associated with this amendment will be $38,000, bringing the total cost for engineering 
services to $332,500. Staff recommends Council approval of the subject engineering contract 
amendment. 
  

35



 

36



 

37



 

38



 

39



Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 

contract amendment. 

 
Councilman Hines went with Assistant Town Manager Williams and Public Works Director Welborn on 
Friday. He suggested to Council that they go and see what is happening. Assistant Town Manager 
Williams said he would be giving virtual tour in a couple months. Councilman Moye asked about the 
Boyd Street completion. NCDOT has said it will be spring to summer for the east portion. 
Councilwoman Roberson noted that cable and phone services interruption is a problem. Public Works 
Director Welborn received a message from Willie Hines and NCDOT met with cable and phone set to 
solve issues. Town Manager Parker asked that citizens please let us know when a problem arises and 
we can get NCDOT to address. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions on the Engineering Services 

Amendment. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 

 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Councilwoman Roberson introduced Dianne Jamison with concerns about the animal holding pens. 
Staff looked into concerns of the animal holding pens. Inspections occur annually and they meet state 
compliance. Town Manager Parker to meet with Ms. Jamison to address her concerns. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA: 
 
Council Moore asked about the utility rates. Town Manager Parker said the 12-month period would be 
the end of January. Staff will be prepared at that time to discuss what things have looked like and 
address some of the items Council has raised. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith noted the sign at A. G. Cox being in bad shape. Mr. McDuffie said that a group 
had an estimate of approximately $6,000 however, the new construction may jeopardize placement of 
the sign. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: Update on Projects Currently Underway: 
 
1. Assistant Manager Williams updated on projects currently underway:  
 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP): Town Manager Parker noted two minimum 
housing homes treated by control burns, other units are in progress. 

 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS): Electric Director Sutton 
reported on the Tar Road project starting next month. The widening project would locate 
electricity on the west side and consist of six lanes. This project will involve cooperation of 
NCDOT and GUC. Preliminary cost estimates range from 1 - 1.5 million dollars. Town Manager 
Parker said NCDOT drives the timeframe. We hope for reimbursement all costs. Engineering 
will start by June and work competed by the end 2020. Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if the 
timeframe was 18 months. Electric Director Sutton crucial working with GUC. Councilman Moye 
asked about the funding. Town Manager Parker said these are budgetary discussion issues. 
Councilman Moye asked about prior commitment. Electric Director Sutton said Councilman 
Moore and Mayor Jackson would be able to help with their experience of past situations. 

40



 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS): Electric Director Sutton said the electric 
territory expansion provides an expansion opportunity. Preliminary costs are $3 - 4 million 
dollars. This area includes west of Highway 11. This area looks good for commercial and 
industrial, and additional residential. 

 The latest round of LED street lights ordered and began installing. This year’s order of LED 
street lights should complete the LED streetlight change-out project. Once all streetlights are 
changed, staff can then begin change-out of area lights. This final phase of the municipal light 
change-out project will take 1-2 years, depending on funding. 

 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ): Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said the review 
and comments of the first draft of the WGMP submitted by Kimley-Horn, the consultant. The 
second draft received on Friday, January 4 and is currently under review. Surveying of the 
proposed Fork Swamp Canal Greenway Corridor is underway. Anticipate surveying to be 
complete the week of January 14, weather permitting. Surveying component is one piece 
involved in the planning process that will assist in planning alignment of the proposed greenway. 
There will be a Fork Swamp Canal Greenway Plan Public Input Meeting on Thursday, January 
31 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room. There will be a presentation 
conducted by the consulting firm, Kimley-Horn staff beginning at 6:30 p.m. 

 Resurfacing of the Hillcrest Basketball Courts (EJ): Parks and Recreation Director Johnston 
said weather has significantly slowed progress on this project. Contractor will install 
backboards/rims and courts will be open for use. In this scenario, Contractor will make any 
needed repairs to court surface because of use, install three additional surface coats, and paint 
lines. Remainder of project will complete once weather consistently warms to allow for court 
surfacing installation. 

 Playgrounds (EJ): Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said the playgrounds have 
substantial progress. The work at Hillcrest Park continues, weather (temperatures and 
precipitation) have been a significant hindrance to the project. 

 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ): Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said we continue 
looking for a site. 

 Parks and Recreation Director Johnston noted that Winterville Cal Ripken Baseball and Daddy-
Daughter Dance registrations are underway. 

 Parks and Recreation Director Johnston responded to Mayor Pro Tem Smith about the water 
tower park sign. Staff is working on new options. Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked to clean the 
existing. 

 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW): Assistant Town Manager Williams said the Town 
Common consultant submitted a draft for review and presentation. 

 Assistant Town Manager Williams noted the earlier Rivers presentation and that those 
documents bring us up to date in many ways. Will be bringing a list of projects from the CIP to 
work with Council. 

 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ): Planning Director Jones said the land use plan casts a vision for 
the Town into the future. Held a steering committee meeting to get feedback. Stakeholders 
meeting to obtain input from all involved. 

 Regional Sewer Pump Station Project (TW): Public Works Director Welborn said the regional 
sewer project is near completion. Pump Station is a fully functioning project with a small SCADA 
issue. 

 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW): Public Works Director 
Welborn said the Chapman Street project is 90% ready to go with plans, permits, bid, and build 
this summer. 

 2018 SRF Application (Sewer Rehabilitation) (TW): Public Works Director Welborn said the 
CCTV part of the project begins next week, then the engineering review, the EREID document 
for approval, then construction plans and specifications. 

41



 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW): Public Works Director Welborn said the grant 
to improve is almost complete. Staff replaced the force main, and then will rebore, and bids are 
now out. 

 Old Tar Road Public Works Director Welborn said we would move most of the utilities. Mostly 
gravity sewer, also, force main, and water. NCDOT says Town not be liable for cost, only 
upgrade costs. 

 Public Works Director Welborn touched on sidewalks contract under review with a late March 
start. Mellon Downs drainage pipe changes at pond has helped. Received Ange to Forbes 
drainage easement from Attorney Lassiter. Some replacement required. Downtown parking 
under review by Attorney Lassiter. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked about patching on Railroad Street. Public Works Director Welborn said he 
would call NCDOT. He explained the online process for reporting potholes on NCDOT roads. Mayor 
Pro Tem Smith asked about a pipe running from a house to Ange Street. Public Works Director 
Welborn said he saw it and would check. Mayor Jackson asked about the ownership of the old pump 
station site at Craft Winds. Public Works Director Welborn said Town has no need and he would chock 
on status. 
 
Councilman Moye spoke about the Bless Your Heart article and the Winterville Cemetery ditch. We will 
check to see if it is a Town ditch and the problem. Councilman Moye asked about the funeral last 
Thursday. Lt. Williams will check into why Winterville police did not pick-up the procession. Councilman 
Moye also asked about traffic at the dumpsite during a funeral, Town Manager Parker to check. 
Councilwoman Roberson said funeral procession pass off does not work well in Winterville and it does 
not look good for the Town. Mayor Jackson said Funeral Home must call the police department. 
 
Lt. Williams reported on stops sign; the directed patrols caught 20 violations mostly during school 
hours. Councilman Moye asked about the need for speed bumps. Lt. Williams said speed bumps have 
a double-edged sword, people work to go around. Mayor Pro Tem Smith said they worked on Primrose 
Lane. Mayor Pro Tem Smith said we need a report of speeding tickets on Mill Street, Laurie Ellis Road, 
and Cooper Street over the last 60 days. Councilman Hines said they do a good job on the west side. 
Lt. Williams noted that we have new officers that need radar certifications, three ready for school. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 
 

1. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Tribute Breakfast - Thursday, January 17, 2019 – 8:30 am at Craig F. 
Goess Student Center, Davenport Multipurpose Room, Pitt Community College. 

2. Martin Luther King Day Holiday: Town Office Closed - Monday, January 21, 2019. 
3. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – Tuesday, January 22, 2019 - 7 pm in Town Hall 

Assembly Room. 
4. Town Council Vision Setting Meeting – Monday, January 28, 2019 – 5:30 pm at Winterville Train 

Depot. 
5. Comprehensive Land Use Plan: Steering Committee Meeting – Tuesday, January 29, 2019 – 

6:00 pm in Town Hall Assembly Room. 
6. Fork Swamp Canal Greenway Public Meeting - Thursday, January 31, 2019 – 6:00 pm in Town 

Hall Assembly Room. 
7. Town & State Dinner – Wednesday, February 20, 2019 – 2:00 pm to 7:30 pm at Raleigh 

Convention Center. Pre-registration and cancellation ends February 8, 2019. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 

42



Attorney Lassiter: None, busy with contract review. 
 
Councilman Moore: Kiwanis Club helped with Town Clock. He asked Town Manager Parker meet with 
Wayne Avery, President to prepare a plaque. Contacted Representative Louis Pate about curb and 
gutter project. He will not be sworn in because he is very sick. A. G. Cox Middle School building is an 
old building. Would like to adopt a resolution about the historical significance. Town Manager Parker 
noted she thought Council did something earlier. Park Street only street not paved. Public Works 
Director Welborn stated it is in Town but is a NCDOT street. Please ask NCDOT to pave. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: Sunday celebration honoring Martin Luther King Jr. at her Church. Library 
Board needs volunteers at book sale, January 30 - February 4. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Smith: None. 
 
Councilman Moye: Happy New Year to all he missed. 
 
Councilman Hines: None. 
 
Manager Parker: Interviews conducted and Chief recommended Recruitment and Retention Officer. 
Interviews next 3 days for remaining positions. 
 
Mayor Jackson: Shared thanks for storm assistance from New Bern and LaGrange. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to 
adjourn the meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 9:42 pm. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 11th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Amy Barrow, Acting Town Clerk 

43



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2018-2019-3. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment 

Attachments: Budget Amendment 18-19-3. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 2/1/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD   TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the third budget amendment for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses the use of additional interest income resulting from changing the Town’s 

investment pool and higher interest rates. The change in strategy and rates increased interest income over 

all funds in the amount of $217,900. Each fund receives a percentage based on the amount of cash in the 

fund as of June 30th. The increased income is being used to offset a few unfunded expenditures in the 

General Fund and the remainder will be used to reduce the amount of fund balance needed to balance the 

fund. All of the enterprise funds will be used to reduce the amount of appropriated fund balance as well. GF - 

$60,000, EL- $118,000, WA - $27,000, SW – $9,900, St.W - $3,000. 

Worthington Rd Study will need to run through the Town instead of the MPO. As a result the Town needs to 

budget for the whole study and will still be responsible for 20% of the project. This will be reimbursed by the 

Town in the amount of $36,000. 

Planning / Inspections Department renovations are budgeted in the amount of $15,000. 

Refund to developers for sureties for two completed sections of subdivisions in the amount of $34,235. 

Planning department will also receive $750 for fuel.  This was not included in the original budget. 

The SAFR Grant budget is for the 5/12ths of the first year and requires a budget in the amount of $497,194. 

This is funded with Grant funds in the amount of $397,511 and an initial contribution from the Town in the 

amount of $99,684. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $698,164. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

44



BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 18-19-3

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment 

be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019:

 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease

Investment Earning 10 3904 General 60,000$         

MPO Riembursement 10 3887 General 36,000$         

Fund Balance 10 3831 General 28,950$         

Fund Balance 10 3831 General 34,235$         

Fund Balance 10 3831 General 99,684$         

Investment Earning 60 3904 Electric 118,000$       

Fund Balance Contribution 60 3831 Electric 118,000$       

Investment Earning 61 3904 Water 27,000$         

Fund Balance Contribution 61 3831 Water 27,000$         

Investment Earning 62 3904 Sewer 9,900$            

Fund Balance Contribution 62 3831 Sewer 9,900$            

Investment Earning 63 3904 Storm Water 3,000$            

Fund Balance Contribution 63 3831 Storm Water 3,000$            

Grant Contribution New Fire Grant - Rec & Ret 141,053$       

Town Contribution New Fire Grant - Rec & Ret 14,198$         

Grant Contribution New Fire Grant - Hirring 256,458$       

Town Contribution New Fire Grant - Hirring 85,486            

Total 885,014$       186,850$       

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

  

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease

Reimbursement for Letter of Credit 1041950000 5121 Non Departmental General Fund 34,235$         

Contracted Services 1041413000 4233 Planning General Fund 36,000$         

Fuel 1041413000 4227 Planning General Fund 750$               

Buildings and Grounds 1042426000 4260 Buildings and Grounds General Fund 15,000$         

Debt Service 1042426000 5132 Public Buildings General Fund 15,000$         

Contribution to Fire Grant New Fire General Fund 99,684$         

Salaries New Rec & Ret Fire Grant 38,771$         

Member Benefits New Rec & Ret Fire Grant 25,000$         

Pay Per Call New Rec & Ret Fire Grant 25,000$         

Equipment New Rec & Ret Fire Grant 58,935$         

Training New Rec & Ret Fire Grant 4,020$            

Contracted Services New Rec & Ret Fire Grant 3,525$            

Salaries New Hirring Fire Grant 342,244$       

Total 698,164$       -$                

Adopted the 11th day of Feburary, 2019.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

45



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Release of Delinquent Fire Inspections Fees. 

Action Requested: Approve the Release of the Fees. 

Attachments: Listing of delinquent owners. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 1/31/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD   TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Due to the fact that many fire inspections are performed on business there are many instances where the 

business closes. Most of the time the business goes bankrupt, or dissolves and makes it nearly impossible 

to collect. As a result, we have several accounts that are out of business and have left us with an unpaid fire 

inspection fee. 

At this time we would like to write off all of the bad debt in an effort to clean up the receivable register. 

Please see the attached information as submitted by the Fire Department. 

The amount of the releases is valued at $1,057.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: None, Most were in prior fiscal years. 

Recommendation: Approve the release. 

 

46



47



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Audit Contract amendment for fiscal year 2017 – 2018. 

Action Requested: Approve the Audit Contract amendment with Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC. 

Attachments: Contract Amendment 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 2/1/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD   TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Each year the Town Council must approve the contract with the audit firm that it uses for its independent 

review of the Town’s Finances. The Town Council approved the original contract at the May 14, 2018 

regularly scheduled meeting. The amendment addresses one item. It extends the date of the contract due to 

delayed information from the GASB 75 implementation and Hurricane Florence. 

The audit is complete as of Jan 31st and is being sent to the printers for publication. 

I will present the audit to the council at the March meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Approve the Contract amendment. 

 

48



Whereas Primary Government Unit 

and Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU)  (if applicable) 

and Auditor 

entered into a contract in which the Auditor agreed to audit the accounts of the Primary 
Government Unit and DPCU (if applicable)  

for 
Fiscal Year Ending 

and originally due on 
Audit Report Due Date

hereby agree that it is now necessary that the contract be modified as follows. 

Original due date Modified due date 
Modification to due date:   

Modification to fee: 
Original fee Modified fee 

EXPLANATION OF MODIFIED CONTRACT TERMS 

Please provide an explanation for the modification of terms. If the amendment is submitted to extend the due date, 
please indicate the steps the unit and auditor will take to prevent late filing of audits in subsequent years. 

By their signatures on the following pages, the Auditor, the Primary Government Unit, and 
the DPCU (if applicable), agree to these modified terms.  

Audit Report Due Date

49



SIGNATURE PAGE 

AUDIT FIRM 

Audit Firm 

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed) Signature 

Date Email Address 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Governmental Unit 

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract (Ref: G.S. 159-34(a) or G.S. 115C-447(a)) 

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature 

Date Email Address 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature 

Date Email Address 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 
*ONLY REQUIRED IF FEES ARE MODIFIED IN THE AMENDED CONTRACT*

(Pre-audit certificate not required for charter schools or hospitals) 

 Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1) 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer Signature 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address 

50



SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU 
(complete only if applicable) 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

DPCU 

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit Contract (Ref: G.S. 159-34(a) or G.S. 115C-447(a)) 

DPCU Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature 

Date Email Address 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature 

Date Email Address 

DPCU  – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 
*ONLY REQUIRED IF FEES ARE MODIFIED IN THE AMENDED CONTRACT*

(Pre-audit certificate not required for charter schools or hospitals) 

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1) 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

DPCU Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address 

51



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Mellon Downs, Phases 2A and 2B: Lots 16, 17, 18, 20, 22, 23, 24, 26, 39, 42, 43, 44, 46, 48, 51, 53, 
54, 55, 56, 72, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86 and Parcels 82642 & 82885. 

Action Requested: Set Public Hearing. 

Attachments: Annexation Map, Annexation Petitions and Metes and Bounds, Resolution, and Certificate of 

Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD   TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owners of Lots 16, 17, 18, 20, 22, 23, 24, 26, 39, 42, 43, 44, 46, 48, 51, 53, 54, 55, 56, 72, 76, 

77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86 and Parcels 82642 & 82885 (HOA Property) in Mellon Downs, Phases 2A and 

2B are applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

Mellon Downs, Phases 2A and 2B:  

Location: Oakwood Drive and Mockingbird Lane 

Size: 31 Lots. 

Zoned: R-12.5  

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (1/14/19).  

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (2/11/19). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (3/11/19). 

 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Set Public Hearing for 3/11/19. 

 

52



Lo
ts
 1
6 
‐1
8,
 2
0,
 2
2‐
24

, 2
6,
 3
9,
 4
2‐
44
, 4
6,
 4
8,
 5
1,
 5
3‐
55

, 5
6,
 7
2,
 7
6‐

82
, 8
4,
 8
6;
 P
ar
ce
ls
 8
26

42
 &
 8
28

85

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Worthington Road Corridor Study – Professional Services Agreement. 

Action Requested: Approve Agreement. 

Attachments: Contract, Scope of Services, Cost Summary. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD   TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town of Winterville is realizing explosive growth. Though the Town is currently a modest population of 
around 10,000, the Town is expected to continue to receive significant population and employment growth. 
Winterville is seen as a quality living environment with easy access to Greenville and other nearby markets. 
Managing growth and maintaining quality and accessible community corridors as the Town grows is essential 
for attracting employment growth. This includes a balance between residential and non-residential uses along 
major corridors that provide expected levels of multimodal transportation service. 

 

The purpose of this corridor study is to develop a corridor plan for Worthington Road, between Mill Street and 
Corey Road that establishes long term capacity under a balanced land use plan. The corridor study will 
evaluate current and future planned conditions, identify deficiencies and make recommendations to enhance 
connectivity and access for all modes of transportation and travel along the corridor, as well as create a vision 
for the corridor. Land and development patterns as well as strategies for a balanced transportation system will 
also be considered. Worthington Road will function as a gateway into the Town of Winterville and will connect 
future development with the downtown area, as well as providing connectivity for bicyclists and pedestrians. 
Maintaining a quality aesthetic context will also be important along the corridor. A preliminary study area figure 
is attached to this scope of services. 

 

This scope of services will assess existing and future conditions, established Town objectives, and provide 
recommendations for future transportation solutions that include service and safety improvements and 
operational efficiencies for the corridor. It will identify potential alternatives and significant land use and 
development patterns for the Town to consider long term. 

Budgetary Impact: $8,989.87 (20% of total $44,949.33) budgeted for FY 18/19. 

Recommendation: Approve Agreement. 

 

87



 

 

STV Engineers, Inc.                 
Vendor Number:  Contract # _______________ 
   

 
 

 
 

Town of Winterville, North Carolina 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

Worthington Road Corridor Study 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this DATE ____________________________,  
by and between the TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA (hereinafter called the 
“TOWN”) and STV ENGINEERS, INC. (hereinafter called the “CONSULTANT” or “Prime 
Consultant”), whose office is located at 900 W. Trade Street, Suite 715 Charlotte, NC 
28202, United States.   
 
 

GENERAL RECITALS 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the TOWN desires the assistance of a CONSULTANT in the 
performance of certain professional services; and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has exhibited evidence of experience, ability, 
competence, and reputation to perform such professional services; and 
 NOW THEREFORE, the TOWN and the CONSULTANT, for consideration 
hereinafter stipulated, mutually agree as follows: 
 The CONSULTANT agrees to perform the assigned professional services on an as 
needed basis. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF WORK  
 
 
I.A.  Description of Work Required 
 

The CONSULTANT will complete the following tasks as described in the following 

sections: 

1.0 Corridor Conditions Assessment 

2.0 Traffic Data Collection and Analysis 

3.0 Conceptual Alternatives 

4.0 Public Involvement 

88



 

 

5.0 Corridor Improvement Recommendations 

6.0 Plan Creation, Adoption and Agreement 

7.0 Project Administration 

 

1.0 Corridor Conditions Assessment 

The CONSULTANT will collect and analyze data about existing conditions for all travel 

modes (pedestrians, bicyclists, transit riders and motorists) and identify deficiencies and 

opportunities.  

1.1 Review of Current Plans 

The CONSULTANT will review the following Transportation and Planning documents 

provided by the TOWN: 

• Town Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

• Zoning Ordinances and Maps 

• Economic Development Plans 

• Pending and Approved Development Plans 

• Greenway and open Space Plans 

• Land Development Plan and Thoroughfare Plan 

1.2 Review of Public Agency Documents 

The CONSULTANT will review relevant public agency documents listed below: 

• NCDOT supported transportation plans (funded/unfunded) 

• NCDOT Highway Safety Improvement Program projects 

• Pitt County Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

• Greenville Urban Area MPO Thoroughfare Plan 

• Plans and documents for U-2817 Old Tar Road widening 

• Plans and documents for U-5991 NC 43 widening 

89



 

 

• Plans and documents for the planned roundabout at Worthington Road 

and Corey Road 

1.3 Transportation 

The CONSULTANT will review the existing Transportation System noting the following: 

• Traffic patterns 

• Geometrics 

• Intersection and driveway operations 

• Pedestrian/Bicycle connectivity 

• Corridor access control 

1.4 Land Use 

The CONSULTANT will review land use plans noting the following: 

• General existing and future land use trends and patterns 

• Locations of pending approved development 

• Property and land uses and properties potentially subject to change 

1.5 Environmental Constraints 

The CONSULTANT will develop environmental constraint mapping using NCOne Map 

GIS data and other GIS based databases along a 500 foot corridor to identify 

challenges associated with: 

• Topography 

• Wetlands 

• Streams 

• Floodplains 

• Wildlife habitat 

• National Register of Historic Places 

90



 

 

 

Deliverables:   

• A section in the report that summarizes the existing conditions, deficiencies, 

conclusions of past studies and matrix of key issues.  This will be included in the 

final report. (1 electronic PDF) 

• Provide a section in the report that includes a summary of existing transportation, 

land use, and environmental conditions and discusses perceived challenges.  

This will be inserted into the final study. (1 electronic PDF) 

2.0 Traffic Data Collection and Analysis 

2.1 Data Collection 

The CONSULTANT will obtain the following traffic data: 

• U-2817 Old Tar Road widening Traffic Forecast and Traffic Capacity 

Analysis 

• U-5991 NC 43 widening Traffic Forecast and Traffic Capacity Analysis 

• Any applicable traffic data for the planned roundabout at Worthington 

Road and Corey Road 

2.2 Traffic Analysis 

The CONSULTANT will perform a capacity study using planned volumes and design 

data from the traffic forecasts.  The analysis will be for a basic arterial roadway segment 

in Highway Capacity Software (HCS) to help guide the recommendations for the future 

cross section of the road (one or two lanes in each direction).  Because the sole major 

intersection (Old Tar Road and Worthington Road) in the study area is being upgraded 

as part of U-2817, no intersection capacity analysis will be performed as part of this 

study. 

Deliverables:  Provide a section within the report that presents the findings of the HCS 

analysis and how that will help guide the decision of the future cross section.  (1 

electronic PDF) 

3.0 Conceptual Alternatives 

91



 

 

Based on existing conditions and project goals, the CONSULTANT will prepare two 

corridor scenarios for the corridor to identify ways to protect or improve corridor 

capacity, safety, and multimodal connectivity, in collaboration with the town staff and 

MPO. The scenarios will consider implications to or associated with current and future 

land use and development patterns, and offer preliminary ideas for mitigating or 

improving land use compatibility, including the possible establishment of land use 

“character districts” which will help inform access control and design recommendations.  

3.1 Conceptual Design 

Two alternatives will be prepared at a conceptual level, acknowledging that travel 

demand modeling will not be undertaken at this step, but could be beneficial as a follow-

op action. The goal is to develop and illustrate likely feasible alternatives to elicit 

community preferences to the direction of physical and connectivity approaches in the 

corridor. 

3.2 Conceptual Rendering 

The CONSULTANT will create two renderings of alternatives in Google SketchUp to 

illustrate proposed roadway and streetscaping improvements along the corridor; 

renderings will be created at a street level perspective. The renderings will include 

proposed widths of sidewalks, planting strips, shoulders, lanes, medians and other 

elements of proposed improvements. 

3.3 Recommendation 

The CONSULTANT will coordinate with the town and MPO to compare and screen the 

two proposed corridor scenarios based on such factors as potential funding, mitigating 

factors, traffic operations and land use. and prepare a recommended corridor vision and 

plan.   

Deliverable:   

• Two high level sketch concepts prepared on corridor base maps illustrating 

alternative improvements with a short bulleted style memo summarizing the 

features and differences of each 

• Two conceptual renderings of proposed roadway/streetscape improvements. 

4.0 Public Involvement 

 

92



 

 

4.1 Project Kickoff Meeting (via Skype/Web Conference) 

The CONSULTANT will host a web meeting with the Town outlining the project and 

present initial research and background information gathered (area plans, traffic 

projections, land use plans, etc.).  The CONSULTANT will also discuss other 

information pertinent to the study with the Town. 

4.2 Alternatives and Recommendations Meeting (In-Person Meeting) 

The CONSULTANT will review with attendees the corridor scenarios (prepared in task 

3.0) to determine improvement preferences for the corridor. Intergovernmental and 

interagency aspects of coordination will also be discussed at this meeting. Potential 

attendees include staff from the Town, MPO, NCDOT and others as appropriate.  

4.3 Town Council Meeting Attendance and Presentation (In-Person 

Meeting) 

The CONSULTANT will attend and deliver a presentation for one Town Council meeting 

to present the study findings and deliver recommendations to the Town Council. 

Deliverables:   

• Alternatives and Recommendations Meeting Materials, including handouts and 

mapping 

• PowerPoint Presentation and Town Council meeting handout. 

5.0 Corridor Improvement Recommendations 

5.1 Accessibility and Connectivity 

The CONSULTANT will provide recommendations in the following areas:  

• Access management along the corridor 

• Active transportation improvements 

• Safety enhancements 

5.2 Multi-modal Roadway Improvements 

The CONSULTANT will provide recommendations in the following areas: 

93



 

 

• Typical section illustrating complete street design principles for 

Worthington Road 

o Proposed lane configurations 

o Recommendations for tying to the intersection improvements at Tar 

Road  

o Potential layouts at future intersections with subdivisions, business 

accesses 

o Bike lanes/paths 

o Sidewalks 

o Greenway access  

• Provide recommendations for future roadway improvements, developer 

responsibilities, etc. 

5.3 Land Use and Development Pattern Recommendations 

• Plan recommendations will be made in consideration of current and 

planned future land use area. Land use character districts may 

provide guidance on the type, spacing and level of access required 

to serve the corridor. Prototype improvements will be prepared. 

• The CONSULTANT will assess current land use conditions and 

future recommended land use patterns under current long range 

plans for the corridor. General policies and land use and 

development recommendations will be made consistent with 

current long-range plans and will consider the appropriateness of 

development controls including current available regulatory tools, 

corridor overlay, or form based controls. 

Deliverables:  Provide a section in the report that summarizes in text and/or visually 

depicts cross section recommendations, access management opportunities and land 

use/development recommendations. This will be inserted into the final study. (1 

electronic PDF) 

6.0 Plan Creation, Adoption and Agreement 

 

94



 

 

The CONSULTANT will develop an initial project report outline and gain consensus 

from the Town in the early phases of the project to help guide the study process and 

develop the project report. 

 

The CONSULTANT will take into account comments and suggestions made by the 

Town and any key stakeholders and prepare and submit a draft document that 

summarizes findings, challenges and presents draft recommendations, including cross 

sections.  The CONSULTANT will address comments prior to submitting the final 

document.  

Deliverables:  Final Worthington Road corridor document. (2 hard copies, 1 electronic 

PDF) 

7.0 Project Administration 

The CONSULTANT will provide project administration for the duration of the project.  

This work will include the following tasks: 

 

• Develop work plan and coordinate project work with the Town  

• Develop and maintain project schedule 

• Establish project budgeting and maintain through course of project 

• Provide monthly invoices and status reports to the Town 

Deliverables:  Project milestone schedule, monthly invoices, and progress reports. 

 
I.B.  Subconsultant Utilization 
 
  The CONSULTANT shall only utilize subconsultants and/or subfirms that are 

prequalified by the North Carolina Department of Transportation to perform 
the specified professional or specialized services needed.   

 
The CONSULTANT shall utilize the subconsultant(s) and/or subfirm(s) as 
proposed in the CONSULTANT’S Letter of Interest (LOI) or project proposal 
to the TOWN regarding the requested services.  The CONSULTANT shall 
indicate the proposed utilization (CONSULTANT name and percentage) for 
both the Prime Consultant and any/all subconsultant(s) firms in the LOI on the 
appropriate FORM RS-2(s), as included in APPENDIX B. 

 

95



 

 

The CONSULTANT shall insure that any/all subconsultant(s) or subfirms(s) 
shall comply with the terms and conditions set forth in this AGREEMENT. 
 
 

I.C.  Subcontracts 
 
  I.C.1.  The CONSULTANT and/or subconsultant will not sublet any 

portion of the work covered by this AGREEMENT without prior 
written approval by the TOWN. 

 
  I.C.2.  The CONSULTANT will be responsible for the schedule of any 

work sublet to others so as to assure the overall schedule of 
the project is maintained. 

 
  I.C.3.  The CONSULTANT will be responsible for the completeness, 

accuracy and presentation of all data, and for the review of any 
work sublet to others. 

 
  I.C.4.  The CONSULTANT shall notify all subconsultants under this 

contract of ALL new work assignments made by the TOWN to 
the CONSULTANT regardless of any particular subconsultant’s 
engagement level under a particular task order.  This 
notification information may be requested by the TOWN in the 
form of a report. 

 
 
I.D.  Work Standards 
 

The CONSULTANT will perform the studies, prepare documents and reports, 
and develop plans in accordance with all applicable State and Federal 
regulations and safety guidelines. 

 
 
I.E.  Deliverables 
 

The CONSULTANT will submit to the TWON the work products outlined in 
the detailed SCOPE OF WORK developed for each task. All deliverables will 
be in accordance to guidelines of the TOWN. 

 
 
I.F.  Guidelines 
 

All work under this contract shall be performed in accordance with all 
applicable guidelines published by the TOWN, and in accordance with the 
SCOPE OF WORK developed for each task. 

 
 
I.G.  When performing field work on or adjacent to public streets or highways, it 

shall be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT to provide traffic control 
including flagmen and/or any other necessary devices in accordance with the 

96



 

 

"Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices" (Current Edition), the "N. C. 
Department of Transportation - Construction and Maintenance Operations 
Supplement to the M.U.T.C.D." and the "North Carolina Survey Crew Safety 
Supplement" to protect workers, equipment, and the traveling public.   

 
 
 

ARTICLE II - DATA AND SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE TWON 
 
 
II.A.  Data and Services 
 
  II.A.1.  The staff person assigned the proposed project in the 

respective Branch, Unit, or Division shall serve as the TOWN’s 
Project Manager for this AGREEMENT.   

 
  II.A.2.  The TOWN shall provide available data and information, as 

applicable to the detailed SCOPE OF WORK developed for 
each task, which may include but is not limited to, the following: 

 

• Guidelines for any applicable discipline; and 

• All data in the hands of the TOWN that can be 
released that would assist the CONSULTANT in the 
accomplishment of the work. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE III - TIME OF BEGINNING AND COMPLETION 
 
 

III.A.  Work will begin immediately following written Notice of Execution of this 
AGREEMENT and Notice to Proceed to begin work on a specified task.  The 
work will be completed according to a written schedule mutually agreed upon 
by the TOWN and the CONSULTANT.  The CONSULTANT will be 
responsible for implementing and monitoring the schedule. 

 
  This Agreement will expire SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 or after the not-to-exceed 

amount has been depleted, whichever comes first. 
 
  This Agreement may be extended, if mutually agreed upon by the TOWN and 

the CONSULTANT. 
 
 
III.B.  Written approval from the Professional Services Management Unit, or the 

contracting Business Unit, of the CONSULTANT scope of work and cost 
estimate for each individual task assigned to the CONSULTANT shall be 
considered the Notice-to-Proceed.  If additional tasks beyond the agreed-upon 
scope of work for the individual project are required to complete the assignment 
then a new written amended scope of work will be developed for the additional 
services.  The CONSULTANT shall notify the TOWN’s Project Manager as 

97



 

 

soon as additional services beyond agreed upon scope of work appear to be 
warranted.  All changes related to scope of work will be directed by and through 
the Professional Services Management Unit, or the contracting Business Unit.  
The CONSULTANT must never under any circumstance exceed the approved 
cost estimate without prior written authorization from the TOWN. 

 
III.C.  No new assignment will be issued from the date of execution or after the not-

to-exceed amount has been depleted, which ever occurs first.  No additional 
work may be assigned under this AGREEMENT after that date unless 
appropriate supplemental agreements are in place. Work and billings on 
assignments with a signed notice to proceed before the end of the contract 
term will continue until satisfactory completion of the assignment deliverables. 

 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE IV - COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS 
 
 

IV.A.  Fees and Costs 
 
  As compensation for the professional services outlined in ARTICLE I, a 

maximum fee amount will be established.  The maximum fee amount for the 
services covered under this AGREEMENT shall not exceed $44,993 (forty-
four thousand, nine hundred and ninety three dollars).  The professional 
services will be performed as individual tasks with lump sum or cost-plus 
compensation negotiated for each task.  The lump sum amount negotiated for 
each task will be full compensation for all direct salary costs, overhead, direct 
non-salary costs, and operating margin incurred for the duration of the task.  
Direct salary costs from APPENDIX A shall be used to compute the lump sum 
or cost-plus amount for assignments assigned during the first year of the 
contract.  The CONSULTANT shall always use their current overhead and cost 
of capital rates once the NCDOT Office of Inspector General issues an 
acceptance letter for the current year’s overhead and cost of capital rates.  The 
CONSULTANT will also be paid for other direct non-salary reimbursement costs 
as established in the NCDOT Field Fiscal Procedures Manual and in 
APPENDIX B of this AGREEMENT. 

 
   
  Overhead 

Overhead rates for actual cost AGREEMENTs are not provisional and there will 
be no reconciliation to true up actual period costs.   Once the NCDOT Office of 
Inspector General issues an acceptance letter for the current year’s overhead 
rate, then the CONSULTANT should at that time begin billing the updated rate.  
Please refer to NCDOT Audit Requirements at the following site: 
https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/consultants/Roadway/NCDOT%20Audit%20
Requirements%20-%20Updated.pdf . 

   
 

98



 

 

  Non-Salary Direct Costs 
  Non-salary direct costs from the web site 

https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/consultants/Pages/Guidelines-Forms.aspx 
shall be used.  These are subject to change during the life of the AGREEMENT.  
Other non-salary direct costs will be reimbursed by copy of invoices, receipts, 
leases (field office), bills or established rates (truck, etc.). 

 
 
IV.B.  Progress Report/Project Schedule 
 
  The CONSULTANT shall prepare a written progress report as required by the 

TOWN’s Project Manager during work which is in progress under this 
AGREEMENT.  The progress report shall discuss accomplishments to date, 
provide percent of tasks completed, provide current and updated projects 
schedules, and identify outstanding issues or problems.  Subsequent to the 
preparation of each progress report, the CONSULTANT may be requested to 
meet with the TOWN to discuss project progress.  The progress report and 
an updated project schedule will be submitted to the TOWN’s Project 
Manager.   

 
  The CONSULTANT shall, with each month’s Progress Report/Invoice indicate 

in the form of a report, the cumulative total of all payments to subconsultants 
under this contract, regardless of any particular subconsultant’s engagement 
level under a particular task order. 

 
 
IV.C.  Payment and Retainage 
 
  Invoices shall be in the TOWN’s format and shall include a DBE-IS form with 

each invoice. Invoices shall be paid by the TOWN within twenty-five days (25) 
of receipt. Interest will be added to accounts by the CONSULTANT for 
invoices not paid by the TOWN within 25 days at the maximum rate allowed 
by law.  If the TOWN fails to make any payment due under this or any other 
agreement within 30 days after the Consultant's transmittal of its invoice, the 
Consultant may, after giving notice to the TOWN, suspend services and 
withhold deliverables until all amounts due are paid  

   The TOWN may withhold retainage on this contract if deemed 
necessary by the Contract Administrator assigned by the TOWN to this 
AGREEMENT.  If retainage is withheld, payment for retainage may be 
released at any time during the contract period at the discretion of the 
contracting officer.  The CONSULTANT may withhold retainage on 
subconsultants only if the TOWN withholds retainage on the subconsultant’s 
portion of the contract.  If the CONSULTANT withholds retainage from the 
subconsultant, it will be released upon request for final payment from the 
subconsultants.   

   The CONSULTANT shall pay subconsultants for work performed after 
CONSULTANT receives payment from the TOWN for work performed by the 
subconsultant.  This requirement must be incorporated into all subconsultant 
agreements. It shall be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT and all 
subconsultants to keep records of all payments requested and the dates 

99



 

 

received.  The TOWN may request copies of this information in the form of a 
report. 

    
 

 Reporting Subconsultant(s) and/or Subfirm(s) 
 

When payments are made to Subconsultant(s) and/or Subfirm(s), 
including material suppliers, Firms at all levels (CONSULTANT, 
subconsultant, or second tier subconsultant) shall provide the TOWN’s 
Project Manager or Contract Administrator with an accounting of said 
payments.  This accounting shall be furnished to the TOWN’s Project 
Manager or Contract Administrator for any given month by the end of the 
following month.  Failure to submit this information accordingly may result in 
(1) withholding of money due in the next partial pay estimate; or (2) removal 
of an approved CONSULTANT from the prequalified bidders list or the 
removal of other entities from the approved subconsultants list.  The 
accounting shall list for each payment made to a Subconsultant(s) and/or 
Subfirm(s) the following: 

 
 

Project Number 
Payer CONSULTANT Name and Federal Taxpayer ID  
Receiving Subconsultant or Material Supplier and Federal Taxpayer ID 
Amount of Payment 
Date of Payment 
This document shall be on the Department’s Subconsultant Payment 

Information Form.  
 

A responsible fiscal officer of the payee CONSULTANT, subconsultant, or 
second tier subconsultant who can attest to the date and amounts of the 
payments shall certify that the accounting is correct. A copy of an acceptable 
report may be obtained from the TOWN’s Project Manager or Contract 
Administrator. 

 
 
IV.D.  Inflation Adjustment 
 
  The salary rates contained in APPENDIX A a may be updated one year from 

the execution date of this AGREEMENT in accordance with the 
CONSULTANT’S corporate policies and upon submission of an amended 
payroll register.  Additional updates, persons and personnel categories can 
be added to the payroll register, as needed, during the duration of the 
agreement, upon mutual agreement of both parties. 

 
   
IV.E.  Supplemental Agreement(s) 
 
  If and when the expenditures approach 75% of the not-to-exceed amount of the 

individual tasks under this AGREEMENT, the TOWN’s Project Manager shall 
be notified in writing.  At that time, the TOWN’s Project Manager and the 

100



 

 

CONSULTANT will review the work progress and determine the probability of a 
cost overrun and the need for a supplemental agreement.  This review shall be 
made without interruption of the work. 

 
  The CONSULTANT shall notify the TOWN’s Project Manager when the 

cumulative value of all Task Orders under this AGREEMENT approaches 90% 
of the total AGREEMENT Value. 

 
 
IV.F.  Maintenance of Information and Reports 
 
  IV.F.1.  NCDOT Information 
 
    IV.F.1.a. All work will be administered and performed in 

accordance with Federal Aid Policy Guide - 23 
CFR 172, the North Carolina Administrative 
Code, all relevant North Carolina General 
Statutes and all United States Statutes.   

 
    IV.F.1.b. Subcontracts exceeding $2,500 which involve the 

employment of mechanics or laborers shall 
require the subconsultant to comply with sections 
103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act (40 USC Chapter 37) as 
supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 CFR, Part 5). 

 
    IV.F.1.c. Subcontracts exceeding $10,000 shall require 

the subconsultant to comply with all Federal and 
State Statutes and regulations required in the 
AGREEMENT. 

 
  IV.F.2.  Availability of Information 
 
    IV.F.2.a. The CONSULTANT will maintain all books, 

documents, papers, accounting records, and 
other information pertaining to costs incurred on 
this project and to make such materials available 
at its offices at all reasonable times during the 
contract period and for three (3) years from the 
date of final payment for inspection by the 
TOWN, North Carolina Department of 
Transportation or the Federal Highway 
Administration or any other authorized 
representative of the TOWN, North Carolina 
Department of Transportation or Federal 
Highway Administration.  Copies thereof will be 
furnished to the TOWN, North Carolina 
Department of Transportation and/or Federal 
Highway Administration if requested.  The 

101



 

 

CONSULTANT and any or all subconsultants will 
use cost principles as described in Federal 
Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR 1-31), Subpart 1-
31.2.  

 
    IV.F.2.b. The CONSULTANT will require all 

subconsultants to whom a portion of this contract 
may be sublet to maintain all such books, 
documents, papers, accounting records, and 
other information pertaining to cost, and further to 
require that said subconsultants make these 
materials available to the TOWN, North Carolina 
Department of Transportation and/or Federal 
Highway Administration at all reasonable times 
during the contract period and for three (3) years 
from date of final payment, and to require said 
subconsultants to furnish copies of such 
documents to the TOWN, North Carolina 
Department of Transportation and/or Federal 
Highway Administration upon request.  The 
CONSULTANT will affirmatively enforce this 
provision of this contract with the subconsultant 
upon request of the TOWN, North Carolina 
Department of Transportation or the Federal 
Highway Administration.   

 
    IV.F.2.c. The CONSULTANT shall notify the TOWN in 

writing of significant changes within the 
CONSULTANT’S firm (e.g., change of name, 
address, telephone number, project-related 
personnel changes, etc.).  This responsibility 
includes ensuring the CONSULTANT’S 
qualification paperwork and registration 
information is current in the TOWN’s and the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation’s 
files.  

 
 
IV.G.  No Guarantee of Need for Services 
 

  The CONSULTANT understands and agrees that this agreement does not 
guarantee that services will be needed from the CONSULTANT.  The 
CONSULTANT further understands and agrees that if the TOWN does not 
require that the CONSULTANT perform services at some point during the 
period of the agreement, the CONSULTANT will not receive any payment 
under this agreement.  The TOWN has exclusive authority to determine when 
services are needed from the CONSULTANT. 

  
 

 

102



 

 

ARTICLE V - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
 
V.A.  Conferences, Visits to Sites, Inspection of Work 
 
  The CONSULTANT will be represented by a responsible member of the firm at 

any meetings, hearings, consultations, and field conferences deemed 
necessary by the TOWN or the CONSULTANT.  All conferences held will be in 
the vicinity of the Project or in Greenville Urbanized Area. 

 
 
V.B.  CONSULTANT’S Responsibility 
 
  The CONSULTANT shall be fully and totally responsible for the accuracy and 

completeness of all work performed under this contract and shall indemnify and 
save harmless the TOWN and shall be fully liable for any additional costs and 
all claims against the TOWN which may arise due to errors, omissions, or 
negligence of the CONSULTANT or any subconsultants in performing the work 
required by this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to any and all costs and 
damages for defending actions or claims under the National Environmental 
Policy Act (NEPA) or the North Carolina Environmental Policy Act of 1971.    

 
  The CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN, its 

officers and employees from any claim, demand, suit, liability, judgment and 
expense (including attorney’s fees and other costs of litigation) arising out of or 
relating to injury, disease, or death of persons or damage to or loss of property 
resulting from or in connection with the negligent performance of this 
AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT, its agents, employees, and 
subconsultants or any one for whom the CONSULTANT may be responsible.  
The obligations, indemnities and liabilities assumed by the CONSULTANT 
under this paragraph shall not extend to any liability caused by the negligence 
of the TOWN or its employees.  The CONSULTANT’S liability shall not be 
limited by any provisions or limits of insurance set forth in this contract in 
Section V.F.2. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE.   

 
  The CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN from any 

claim, demand, suit, liability, judgment, and expense (including attorney’s fees 
and other costs of litigation) involving damage or loss to the CONSULTANT’S 
equipment (including vandalism, theft, fire and acts of God) arising out of or 
relating to work performed under this AGREEMENT.  The obligations, 
indemnities and liabilities assumed by the CONSULTANT under this paragraph 
shall not extend to any liability caused by the negligence of the TOWN or its 
employees.  The CONSULTANT’S liability shall not be limited by any provisions 
or limits of insurance set forth in this contract.   

 
  If, during the duration of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT receives 

instructions or directions which are considered beyond the scope of work 
outlined in this AGREEMENT, all work shall be suspended until the matter is 
resolved.  The CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the TOWN’s Project 
Manager in writing with a description and justification for the claim of extra work.  

103



 

 

The CONSULTANT shall not continue work until written notice to proceed is 
given. 

 
  If the CONSULTANT receives incorrect instruction or direction as it relates to 

the individual scope of work for an assignment, the CONSULANT will contact 
the TOWN’s Project Manager with the details of the work beyond the negotiated 
Scope of Work herein.  The CONSULTANT and TOWN’s Project Manager will 
mutually agree upon what direction to pursue before any additional work is 
undertaken for that specific assignment.  If additional services are required, then 
a new scope of work and estimate will be prepared.  The CONSULTANT shall 
not continue work until a written notice to proceed for the agreed upon services 
is given.   

 
  In no event shall either party be liable to the other for any consequential, 

incidental, punitive, or indirect damages including but not limited to loss of 
income or loss of profits. 

 
 
V.C.  Relationship with Others 
 

The CONSULTANT will cooperate fully with the TOWN with municipalities and 
local government officials, Federal and state environmental resource and 
regulatory agencies, and with any others as may be directed by the TOWN.  
This shall include attendance at meetings, workshops, and hearings and also 
includes provision of project development, human and natural environmental 
and engineering information to all parties as may be requested by the TOWN.  
The CONSULTANT will also cooperate fully with the TOWN and other agencies 
on adjacent projects.   

 
 
V.D.  The Professional services provided by the CONSULTANT under this 

AGREEMENT will be performed, findings obtained, and recommendations 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted industry principles and 
practices.   

 
 
V.E.  All work shall be administered and performed in accordance with Federal-Aid 

Highway Program Manual Volume 1, Chapter 7, Section 2 and the relevant 
parts of North Carolina Administrative Code and General Statutes. 

 
 
V.F.  ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
 
  V.F.1.  COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
 

The CONSULTANT warrants that he has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or 
secure this contract and that he has not paid or agreed to pay 
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 

104



 

 

working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any consideration, 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
contract.  For breach or violation of this warranty, the TOWN 
shall have the right to annul this contract without liability, or in 
its discretion to deduct from the contract price or consideration, 
or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee. 

 
 
 
  V.F.2.  INSURANCE 
 

The Consultant shall maintain the following insurance 
coverages while performing in accordance with the terms of 
this contract, subject to the terms and conditions of the policies:  
 
Workers’ Compensation: Statutory  
 
 Employer’s Liability -- 
  Each Accident:  $100,000 
  Disease, Policy Limit: $500,000 
  Disease, Each Employee: $100,000 
 
 General Liability -- 
  Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage): $1,000,000 
 
  General Aggregate: $2,000,000  
 
 
 Automobile Liability --Combined Single Limit (Bodily    
Injury and Property Damage): 
  Each Accident $1,000,000 
 
 Professional Liability – 
  Each Claim Made $1,000,000  
  Annual Aggregate $1,000,000  
 
CONSULTANT will furnish the TOWN with certificates of 
insurance verifying the above referenced coverages and stating 
that the insurance carrier will provide the TOWN with 30 days 
prior written notice of insurance cancellation.  The 
CONSULTANT shall list the TOWN as an additional insured for 
the General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance.   

 
  V.F.3.  DESIGN 
 

Unless covered elsewhere in this AGREEMENT, design 
standards are to be as furnished by the TOWN. 

105



 

 

 
 
  V.F.4.  OWNERSHIP OF ENGINEERING DOCUMENTS 
 

All tracings, documents, technical reports, charts, plans, 
specifications, photographic negatives, survey notes, 
computations, and maps and other data prepared or obtained 
under the terms of the contract shall be delivered to and 
become the property of the TOWN without restriction or 
limitation on their use.  However, in the event of any reuse or 
alteration of any documents furnished to the TOWN, such 
alteration or reuse shall be at the TOWN’s sole risk.  In the 
case of an agreement involving preliminary plans only, no 
commitment is stated or implied that would constitute a 
limitation on the subsequent use of the plans or ideas 
incorporated therein for preparation of construction plans.  
These items could become the property of the TOWN, if the 
TOWN so elects.   

 
  V.F.5.  CHANGES IN WORK 
 

All changes in the work will be included in supplemental 
agreements, which will be executed prior to beginning of such 
supplemental work.  The supplemental work will be approved 
by the TOWN and all other appropriate agencies prior to doing 
the work. 

 
 
  V.F.6.  DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS 
 

Reasonable extension of time for unforeseen delays may be 
made by mutual written consent of all parties involved. 

 
 
  V.F.7.  TERMINATION OR ABANDONMENT 
 

Should the TOWN for any reason whatsoever decide to cancel 
or to terminate the use of the CONSULTANT’S services, it will 
furnish thirty (30) days written notice thereof to the 
CONSULTANT who will immediately terminate work, but shall 
bring to a reasonable stage of completion those items whose 
value would be otherwise lost without such necessary further 
work, as may be directed by the TOWN, and will turn over to 
the TOWN all data, environmental documents, technical 
reports, charts, survey notes, figures, drawings, and other 
records or information collected or secured herein, whether 
partial or complete.  Upon such termination, the fee to be paid 
the CONSULTANT will be equitable to cover all services 
rendered, using a proportional amount of the total fee based on 
a ratio of the amount of work done to the total amount of work 

106



 

 

which was to have been performed, less prior partial payments 
which have been made and also pursuant to an accounting by 
the TOWN and upon approval of the Contract Administrator. 

 
 
  V.F.8.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

All claims by either party arising out of this Agreement or its 
breach shall be submitted first to mediation in accordance with 
the American Arbitration Association as a condition precedent 
to litigation.  Any mediation or civil action by either party must 
be commenced within one year of the accrual of the cause of 
action asserted but in no event later than allowed by applicable 
statutes 

 
  V.F.9.  GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 

The CONSULTANT will comply with all laws, ordinances and 
regulations, Federal, State and local, applicable to the work.  
Specific attention is directed to North Carolina General Statutes 
14-100 (Obtaining Property by False Pretenses) and 136-13.2 
(Falsifying Highway Inspection Reports).   

 
1. Selection of Labor 
 

During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT will not discriminate against labor from 
any other State, possession or territory of the United 
States. 

 
2. Employment Practices 
 

THE TOWN OPPOSES DISCRIMINATION ON THE 
BASIS OF RACE AND SEX AND URGES ALL OF 
ITS CONSULTANTS TO PROVIDE A FAIR 
OPPORTUNITY FOR MINORITIES AND WOMEN TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THEIR WORK FORCE AND AS 
SUBCONSULTANTS AND VENDORS UNDER 
TOWN CONTRACTS.  
 
During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of 49 CFR Part 21, 23 CFR Part 200 and Part 
230 and the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, and 
agree as follows: 
 
a. The CONSULTANT will not discriminate against 

any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, religion, creed, color, national 
origin, sex, age, handicap and/or disability.  The 

107



 

 

CONSULTANT will take affirmative action to 
ensure that applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment 
without regard to their race, religion, creed, color, 
national origin, sex, age, handicap or disability.  
Such action shall include, but not be limited to 
the following: employment, upgrading, demotion 
or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoffs, or termination; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship.  The 
CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous 
places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the 
TOWN setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

 
b. The CONSULTANT will, in all solicitations or 

advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the CONSULTANT, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, religion, 
creed, color, national origin, sex, age, handicap 
and/or disability. 

 
c. The CONSULTANT will send to each labor union 

or representative of workers with which the 
CONSULTANT has a collective bargaining 
agreement or other contract or understanding, a 
notice to be provided by the TOWN, advising the 
labor union or workers' representatives of the 
CONSULTANT’S commitments under this 
AGREEMENT and shall post copies of the notice 
in conspicuous places available to employees 
and applicants for employment. 

 
d. The CONSULTANT will comply with all 

provisions of U.S. Presidential Executive Order 
No. 11246 as amended by Executive Order 
11375, and other Orders and as supplemented in 
U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR 
Chapter 60). 

 
e. The CONSULTANT will furnish all information 

and reports required by Executive Order No. 
11246 as amended by Executive Order 11375, 
and other Orders, and as supplemented in 
U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR 
Chapter 60), and will permit access to his books, 
records, and accounts by the U.S. Secretary of 

108



 

 

Labor or Labor Officials for purposes of 
investigations to ascertain compliance with such 
rules, regulations and orders. 

 
f. In the event of the CONSULTANT’S 

noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 
clauses of this AGREEMENT or with any of rules, 
regulations, or orders referenced hereinabove 
this AGREEMENT may be canceled, terminated, 
or suspended in whole or in part, and the 
CONSULTANT may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts or Federally-
assisted construction agreements in accordance 
with procedures authorized in Executive Order 
No. 11246 as amended by Executive Order 
11375 and other Orders and as supplemented in 
U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR 
Chapter 60) and such other sanctions may be 
imposed and remedies invoked as provided in 
the aforementioned U.S. Presidential Executive 
Order and regulations or as otherwise provided 
by law. 

 
g. The CONSULTANT will include the provisions of 

the paragraphs under Section V.F.9.2 of this 
AGREEMENT in every subcontract or purchase 
order so that such provisions will be binding upon 
each subconsultant or vendor unless specifically 
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the 
U.S. Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to 
Section 204 of the U.S. Presidential Executive 
Order No. 11246.   

 
3. Title VI and Nondiscrimination 

 
Purpose 
The purpose of this section is to comply with Federal 
Requirements under United States Department of 
Transportation Order 1050.2A, Title 49 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) part 21 and 23 CFR part 200. Any 
Federal provision that is specifically required not 
specifically set forth is hereby incorporated by reference. 
 
a. NCDOT Title VI Assurance (1050.2A, Appendix 

A & E) 
 

i. During the performance of this contract, the 
CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to 
as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

109



 

 

 
(1) Compliance with Regulations: The 
contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) 
will comply with the Acts and the Regulations 
relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-
assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation, Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA), as they may be 
amended from time to time, which are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of 
this contract. 
 
(2) Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with 
regard to the work performed by it during the 
contract, will not discriminate on the grounds 
of race, color, or national origin in the 
selection and retention of subcontractors, 
including procurements of materials and 
leases of equipment. The contractor will not 
participate directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the 
Regulations, including employment practices 
when the contract covers any activity, project, 
or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR 
Part 21. 
 
(3) Solicitations for Subcontractors, 
Including Procurements of Materials and 
Equipment: In all solicitations, either by 
competitive bidding, or negotiation made by 
the contractor for work to be performed under 
a subcontract, including procurements of 
materials, or leases of equipment, each 
potential subcontractor or supplier will be 
notified by the contractor of the contractor's 
obligations under this contract and the Acts 
and the Regulations relative to 
Nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin. 
 
(4) Information and Reports: The contractor 
will provide all information and reports 
required by the Acts, the Regulations, and 
directives issued pursuant thereto and will 
permit access to its books, records, accounts, 
other sources of information, and its facilities 
as may be determined by the Recipient or the 
FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain 
compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and 
instructions. Where any information required 

110



 

 

of a contractor is in the exclusive possession 
of another who fails or refuses to furnish the 
information, the contractor will so certify to the 
Recipient or the FHWA, as appropriate, and 
will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain 
the information. 
 
(5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the 
event of a contractor's noncompliance with 
the Non¬ discrimination provisions of this 
contract, the Recipient will impose such 
contract sanctions as it or the FHWA may 
determine to be appropriate, including, but 
not limited to:  
 

(a) withholding payments to the contractor 
under the contract until the contractor 
complies; and/or  
(b) cancelling, terminating, or suspending 
a contract, in whole or in part. 

 
(6) Incorporation of Provisions: The 
contractor will include the provisions of 
paragraphs one through six in every 
subcontract, including procurements of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless 
exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and 
directives issued pursuant thereto. The 
contractor will take action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Recipient 
or the FHWA may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions 
for noncompliance. Provided, that if the 
contractor becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, 
or supplier because of such direction, the 
contractor may request the Recipient to enter 
into any litigation to protect the interests of 
the Recipient. In addition, the contractor may 
request the United States to enter into the 
litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States.  

 
ii. During the performance of this contract, the 

contractor, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to 
as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the 
following nondiscrimination statutes and 
authorities; including but not limited to: 

 

111



 

 

Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 
U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR 
Part 21. 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair 
treatment of persons displaced or whose 
property has been acquired because of 
Federal or Federal-aid programs and 
projects); 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 
U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex); 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as 
amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 
1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination based 
on race, creed, color, national origin, or 
sex); 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, 
(PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, 
coverage and applicability of Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by 
expanding the definition of the terms 
"programs or activities" to include all of 
the programs or activities of the Federal-
aid recipients, sub-recipients and 
contractors, whether such programs or 
activities are Federally funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, which prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of disability in 
the operation of public entities, public and 
private transportation systems, places of 
public accommodation, and certain testing 
entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as 
implemented by Department of 

112



 

 

Transportation regulations at 49  C.F.R. 
parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration's 
Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 
47123) (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, national origin, and 
sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions 
to Address Environmental Justice in 
Minority Populations and Low-Income 
Populations, which ensures 
Nondiscrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, 
policies, and activities with 
disproportionately high and adverse 
human health or environmental effects on 
minority and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access 
to Services for Persons with Limited 
English Proficiency, and resulting agency 
guidance, national origin discrimination 
includes discrimination because of Limited 
English proficiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with Title VI, you must take 
reasonable steps to ensure that LEP 
persons have meaningful access to your 
programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 
74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 
1972, as amended, which prohibits you 
from discriminating because of sex in 
education programs or activities (20 
U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

 
b. NCDOT Title VI Nondiscrimination Program (23 

CFR 200.5(p)) 
 

The North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT) has assured the United States 
Department of Transportation that, as a condition 
to receiving federal financial assistance, NCDOT 
will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 and all requirements imposed by Title 49 
CFR part 21 and related nondiscrimination 
authorities to ensure that no person shall, on the 
ground of race, color, national origin, limited 
English proficiency, income-level, sex, age, or 
disability, (or religion, where applicable) be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 

113



 

 

under any programs, activities, or services 
conducted or funded by NCDOT. Contractors 
and other organizations under contract or 
agreement with NCDOT must also comply with 
Title VI and related authorities, therefore: 
 

i. During the performance of this contract or 
agreement, contractors (e.g., subcontractors, 
consultants, vendors, prime contractors) are 
responsible for complying with NCDOT’s Title 
VI Program. Contractors are not required to 
prepare or submit Title VI Programs. (USDOJ 
Title VI Legal Manual, VI(F)) 

 
ii. Subrecipients (e.g. cities, counties, LGAs, 

MPO/RPOs) may be required to prepare and 
submit a Title VI Program to NCDOT, which 
may include Title VI Nondiscrimination 
Assurances and/or agreements. 
Subrecipients must also ensure that their 
contractors and subrecipients comply with 
Title VI. (23 CFR 200.9(b)(7)) 

 
iii. If reviewed or investigated by NCDOT, the 

contractor or subrecipient agrees to take 
affirmative action, to correct any deficiencies 
found within a reasonable time period, not to 
exceed 90 calendar days, unless additional 
time is granted by NCDOT. (23 CFR 
200.9(b)(15)) 

 
4. Incorporation of Provisions: 

 
 The CONSULTANT will include the provisions of 

paragraph V.F.9.3 of this AGREEMENT in every sub-
contract, including procurements of materials and leases 
of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, orders, 
or instructions issued pursuant thereto.  The 
CONSULTANT or subconsultant will take such action 
with respect to any subcontract, procurement or leases 
as the TOWN may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance; 
provided, however, that, in the event the CONSULTANT 
become involved in, or is threatened with litigation with a 
subconsultant, or lessor as a result of such direction, the 
CONSULTANT may request the TOWN to enter into 
such litigation to protect the interests of the TOWN, and 
in addition, the CONSULTANT may request the State of 
North Carolina and United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

114



 

 

The CONSUTLANT shall advise the TOWN, State of 
North Carolina and United States in writing of such 
potential or actual litigation.  However, the TOWN, State 
of North Carolina and United States are not required to 
enter into such litigation by law.  The CONSULTANT 
shall be responsible for paying all litigation expenses, 
including but not limited to attorneys fees and costs, 
incurred by the TOWN, State of North Carolina and 
United States defending such litigation.   

 
5. For contracts and subcontracts of amounts in excess of 

$100,000.00, the CONSULTANT or subconsultant will 
comply with all applicable standards, orders, or 
requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air 
Act (42 USC 7606), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act 
(33 USC 1368), U.S. Presidential Executive Order 
11738, and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) regulations, which prohibit, under nonexempt 
Federal contracts, grants or loans, the use of facilities 
included on the EPA List of Violating Facilities.  The 
CONSULTANT or subconsultant will report violations to 
the grantor agency and to the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency, U.S. Assistant Administrator for 
Enforcement. 

  
 

V.F.10. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
 

(a) Policy 
 

It is the policy of the TOWN and State of North Carolina 
that small businesses shall have an equal opportunity to 
compete fairly for and to participate in the performance 
of contracts financed in whole or in part by federal and 
state funds.   

 
The TOWN is committed to its annual aspirational 
goal(s) set on all federally-assisted and state funded 
contracts. Professional Services Contracts are race and 
gender neutral and do not contain goals.   However, the 
CONSULTANT is encouraged to give every opportunity 
to allow Disadvantaged, Minority-Owned and Women-
Owned Business Enterprises (DBE/MBE/WBE) 
subconsultant participation on all contracts and 
supplemental agreements. 

 
(b)   Obligation 

 
In compliance with Title VI, 23 CFR 200, 230, 635, 117 
(d) and (e) and 49 CFR Parts 21 and 26, the 

115



 

 

CONSULTANT and subconsultant shall not discriminate 
on the basis of race, religion, color, creed, national 
origin, age, disability or sex in the performance of this 
contract.  Failure by the CONSULTANT to comply with 
these requirements is a material breach of this contract, 
which will result in the termination of this contract or 
such other remedy, as the TOWN and North Carolina 
Department of Transportation deems necessary. 

 
(c)   Reporting Participation 

 
When payments are made to subconsultants, including 
material suppliers, firms at all levels (CONSULTANT, 
subconsultant or subfirm) shall provide the Contract 
Administrator with an accounting of said payments.  This 
accounting shall be furnished to the Contract 
Administrator for any given month, by the end of the 
following month.  Failure to submit this information 
accordingly may result in (1) withholding of money due 
in the next partial pay estimate; or (2) removal of an 
approved CONSULTANT from the pre-qualified list or 
the removal of other entities from the approved 
subconsultants list.  The accounting shall be listed on 
the Department’s Subcontractor Payment Information 
Form (Form DBE-IS). In the event the CONSULTANT 
has no subconsultant participation, the firm shall 
indicate this on the Form DBE-IS by entering the word 
‘None’ or the number ‘zero’ and the form shall be 
signed.  

 
A responsible fiscal officer of the payee CONSULTANT, 
or subconsultant, who can attest to the date and amount 
of the payments shall certify that the accounting is 
correct on the Form DBE-IS by affixing his/her 
signature. This information shall be submitted as part of 
the requests for payments made to the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation.  A copy of the Form DBE-
IS may be found on the NCDOT website.  

 
 

V.F.11. SMALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FIRM 
     

(a) Program 
 

The Small Professional Services Firm (SPSF) Program 
was developed to provide consultant opportunities for 
firms that meet the eligibility criteria to compete against 
other consultant firms that are comparably positioned in 
their industries.  The TOWN and North Carolina 
Department of Transportation are committed to 

116



 

 

providing contractual opportunities to qualified firms and 
believes that the total quality of a professional or 
specialized services team is enhanced by the inclusion 
of qualified subconsultants.   

 
The SPSF program is a race, ethnicity, and gender 
neutral program designed to increase the availability of 
contracting opportunities for small businesses on 
federal, state, or locally funded contracts.  SPSF 
participation is not contingent upon the funding source.   

 
Participation credit cannot be counted unless the firm is 
certified as a SPSF at the time a letter of interest is 
submitted for the proposed work. 

 
A firm certified as a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(DBE), Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), and/or 
Women’s Business Enterprise (WBE) may automatically 
be certified, based on North American Industrial 
Classification System (NAICS) code classification, as an 
SPSF and does not need to obtain further SPSF 
certification.   

 
(b) Replacement of SPSF contractors 

 
The Prime Consultant must not terminate a SPSF listed 
in the Consultant’s Letter of Interest, See Section I.B., 
for convenience and then perform the work of the 
terminated subcontract with its own forces, or those of 
an affiliate, without the Department’s prior written 
consent.   

 
When a SPSF subconsultant is terminated or fails to 
complete its work on the contract for any reason, the 
Department encourages the Prime Consultant to make 
an earnest effort to find another SPSF subconsultant to 
substitute for the original SPSF.  These efforts shall be 
directed at finding another SPSF to perform at least the 
same amount of work under the contract as the SPSF 
that was terminated.   

 
(c) Counting SPSF Participation toward meeting the 

proposed SPSF Utilization 
 

If a Firm is determined to be an eligible SPSF Firm and 
certified by the Department, the total dollar value of the 
participation by the SPSF will be counted toward the 
utilization.  The total dollar value of participation by a 
certified SPSF will be based upon the value of work 

117



 

 

actually performed by the SPSF and the actual 
payments to SPSF Firms by the Consultant.   
 
 

  V.F.12. SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT, OR TRANSFERS 
 
There shall be no assignment, subletting or transfer of the 
interest of the CONSULTANT in any of the work covered by the 
AGREEMENT without the written consent of the TOWN, except 
that the CONSULTANT may, with prior notification of such 
action to the TOWN, sublet property searches and related 
services without further approval of the TOWN. 

 
 

  V.F.13. CONSULTANT'S ENDORSEMENT OF PLANS, ETC. 
 
The CONSULTANT will sign and professional seal all 
environmental documents, reports, surveys, computations, 
maps, plans, specifications, estimates, and engineering data 
furnished by it. 

 
 
  V.F.14. CONTROL OF WORK 

 
All work by the CONSULTANT or subconsultant is to be done 
in a manner satisfactory to the TOWN and in accordance with 
the established customs, practices, and procedures of the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation and in conformity 
with the Standards adopted by the American Association of 
State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO), and 
approved by the Secretary of Transportation as provided in 
Title 23, U. S. Code, Section 109(b).  The decision of the 
TOWN is to control in all questions regarding location, type of 
design, dimension of design, and similar questions. 

 
 
  V.F.15. APPROVAL OF PERSONNEL 

 
 

 
The TOWN shall have the right to approve or reject the 
CONSULTANT’s or subconsultant’s project manager, project 
engineer, design engineer, technicians, and other technical or 
supervisory personnel assigned to a project. 
 
In the event of engagement, the CONSULTANT or their 
subconsultant shall restrict such person or persons from 
working on any of the CONSULTANT’S contracted projects in 
which the person or persons were formerly involved while 
employed by the TOWN.  This restriction period shall be for the 

118



 

 

duration of the contracted project with which the person or 
persons was involved.  “Involvement” shall be defined as active 
participation in any of the following activities:   
 

• Drafting the planning, environmental and/or engineering 
agreement;   

• Defining the scope of the contracted work;   

• Selection of the CONSULTANT for service;  

• Negotiation of the cost of the CONSULTANT’S services 
(including calculating work days or fees); and 

• Administration of the contract.   
 

An exception to these terms may be granted when 
recommended by the Town Manager and approved by the 
Town of Winterville Town Council. 

 
Failure to comply with the terms stated above shall be grounds 
for termination of this contract and/or not being considered for 
selection of work on future contracts for a period of one year. 
 
 

  V.F.16. GIFTS AND FAVORS 
 

By N.C. G.S.§ 133-32, it is unlawful for any vendor or 
contractor ( i.e. architect, bidder, contractor, construction 
manager, design professional, engineer, landlord, offeror, 
seller, subcontractor, supplier, or vendor), to make gifts or to 
give favors to any TOWN employee or State employee of the 
Governor’s Cabinet Agencies (i.e., Administration, Commerce, 
Correction, Crime Control and Public Safety, Cultural 
Resources, Environment and Natural Resources, Health and 
Human Services, Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, 
Revenue, Transportation, and the Office of the Governor).  This 
prohibition covers those vendors and contractors who:  

     (1) have a contract with a governmental agency; or  
     (2) have performed under such a contract within the 

past year; or  
     (3) anticipate bidding on such a contract in the 

future. 
 

For additional information regarding the specific requirements 
and exemptions, vendors and contractors are encouraged to 
review G.S. Sec. 133-32. 

 
 

  V.F.17. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

The CONSULTANT does hereby certify that they have not 
entered into and, during the lifetime of the AGREEMENT, will 
not enter into any agreement with a third-party affording the 

119



 

 

CONSULTANT, or any Subcontractors that they may hire, with 
any direct or indirect financial interest in the outcome of the 
project, except with regard to the project development, human 
and natural environmental and/or engineering services 
associated with this AGREEMENT. 
 
Pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 133-1, the CONSULTANT will not 
knowingly specify building materials, equipment, or other items 
that are manufactured, sold or distributed by any firm or 
corporation in which the designer has a financial interest.  
Pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 133-2, the CONSULTANT will not 
employ or allow manufacturers or their representatives or 
agents to write, plan, draw, or make specifications for such 
public works. 
 
The CONSULTANT does hereby certify that it does not have 
any potential conflict of interest with any entity involved with the 
project.  Any potential conflict of interest shall be disclosed 
immediately to the TOWN. 

 
 
  V.F.18. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 
 
    In performing all of the Services, the Consultant shall comply  
    with all applicable law. 
   
  V.F.19. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE 
 

The CONSULTANT shall comply with the requirements of 
Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 
Further, if the CONSULTANT utilizes a Subconsultant, the 
CONSUTLANT shall require the Subconsultant to comply with 
the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes. The CONSULTANT represents that 
their firm and its Subconsultant are in compliance with the 
requirements of Article 2 Chapter 64 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes. 

 
  V.F.20. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Choice of Law and Forum 
This contract shall be deemed made in Pitt County, North 
Carolina.  This contract shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the law of North Carolina.  The exclusive 
forum and venue for all actions arising out of this contract shall 
be the North Carolina General Court of Justice, in Pitt County.  
Such actions shall neither be commenced in nor removed to 
federal court.  This section shall not apply to subsequent 
actions to enforce a judgment entered in actions heard 
pursuant to this section.   

120



 

 

 
Waiver 
No action or failure to act by the TOWN shall constitute a 
waiver of any of its rights or remedies that arise out of this 
contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute 
approval of or acquiescence in a breach thereunder, except as 
may be specifically agreed in writing. 
 
Performance of Government Functions 
Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed or 
construed so as to in any way stop, limit, or impair the TOWN  
from exercising or performing any regulatory, policing, 
legislative, governmental, or other powers or functions. 
 
Severability 
If any provision of this contract shall be unenforceable, the 
remainder of this contract shall be enforceable to the extent 
permitted by law. 
 

   Rights in Deliverables 
 
All deliverables provided by Consultant to the TOWN shall 
belong to the TOWN.  Methodologies, pre-existing intellectual 
property, and other instruments of service used to prepare the 
deliverables shall remain the property of the Consultant. Any 
data purchased or obtained by Consultant from third parties will 
remain the property of the third party providing the data, and 
use of such data may be subject to additional third party license 
terms. 

 

Confidentiality 
 
The TOWN consents to the use and dissemination by the 

CONSULTANT of photographs of the project and to the use by the 

CONSULTANT of facts, data and information obtained by the 

CONSULTANT in the performance of its services.  If, however, 

any facts, data or information are specifically identified in writing 

by the TOWN as confidential, the CONSULTANT shall use 

reasonable care to maintain the confidentiality of that material. 

   APPENDICES 

   The following APPENDICES are made a part of this contract: 

 

   APPENDIX A:  Fee Structure 

   APPENDIX B:  Required Documents and Forms 

   APPENDIX C: Schedule of Work 

 

121



 

 

In case of conflict between an exhibit and the text of this contract 
excluding the exhibit, the text of this contract shall control. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(REMAINDER OF) THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

122



 

    
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed in triplicate 
originals as the day and year first above written. 
 
 

EXECUTED by the TOWN this DATE __________________________. 
 
 
By: ____________________________ Date: ____________________________ 
 
Title: STV Engineering, INC. 
  

 
 
 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
 
 
 
By: __________________________ Date:  ____________________________ 
 
 
Title: Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
By: __________________________ 
 
 
Title: Town Attorney 
 
 
Pre-Audit Certification: 

 

This Instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

By:         

 Anthony Bowers, Director 
 Town of Winterville Finance Department 

 
 
 
 

123



 

    
 

CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT 
 

 
___________________________________, being duly sworn, certify that I am the 

_________________________________________ and duly authorized representative of 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

whose address is _________________________________________________________ and that neither 

I nor the above firm I represent or any of its principals: 

 
(a) has employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or other 

consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or 
the above firm) to solicit or secure this agreement; 

 
(b) has agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or 

retain the services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the agreement, or 
 

(c) has paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for me or the above firm) any fee, contribution, donation, or 
consideration of any kind for, or in connection with procuring or carrying out the agreement;  

 
(d) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(e) has within a three-year period preceding this agreement been convicted of or had a civil 
judgement rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records; making false statements; or receiving stolen property; 

 
(f) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by governmental entity 

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph e. 
of this certification; and 
 

 
(g) has within a three-year period preceding this agreement had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.   
 

124



except as here expressly stated (if any):

I acknowledge that this certification is executed according to EXHIBIT A, which is also a part of this
agreement, and that if future certifications are required of subconsultants and suppliers, under US DOT
Order 4200.5E and 2 CFR Part 180, I shall obtain them.

I acknowledge that this certificate is to be furnished to the North Carolina Department of
Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration, U. S. Department of Transportation, in
connection with this agreement and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal and
civil.

_______________________
(Date)

Attest ________________________ By _________________________________
Signature Signature 

_________________________ ___________________________________
Title Title 

________________________ _________________________________
Print or type Signer’s name Print or type Signer’s name

125



 

 
 

 
 

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
 

H
ou

rs
D

ol
la

rs
H

ou
rs

D
ol

la
rs

H
ou

rs
D

ol
la

rs
H

ou
rs

D
ol

la
rs

H
ou

rs
D

ol
la

rs
H

ou
rs

D
ol

la
rs

H
ou

rs
D

ol
la

rs
H

ou
rs

D
ol

la
rs

D
ir

ec
t 

L
ab

or
An

ne
 R

ed
m

on
d

70
.63

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
 

3
21

1.8
9

$ 
   

1.5
10

5.9
5

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

4
28

2.5
2

$ 
   

5
35

3.1
5

$ 
   

13
.5

95
3.5

1
$ 

   
 

K
ath

ry
n 

Cu
rry

44
.49

$ 
 

18
80

0.8
2

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
12

53
3.8

8
$ 

   
38

1,6
90

.62
$ 

  
4

17
7.9

6
$ 

   
14

62
2.8

6
$ 

   
32

1,4
23

.68
$ 

11
8

5,2
49

.82
$ 

  
Ju

sti
n 

Ca
rro

ll
64

.03
$ 

 
6

38
4.1

8
$ 

   
   

   
14

89
6.4

2
$ 

   
9

57
6.2

7
$ 

   
26

1,6
64

.78
$ 

  
16

1,0
24

.48
$ 

4
25

6.1
2

$ 
   

8
51

2.2
4

$ 
   

83
5,3

14
.49

$ 
  

Tr
en

t M
oo

dy
50

.52
$ 

 
1

50
.52

$ 
   

   
   

  
4

20
2.0

8
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
12

60
6.2

4
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
17

85
8.8

4
$ 

   
 

Pa
tri

ck
 L

ivi
ng

sto
n

40
.18

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
 

10
40

1.8
0

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
12

48
2.1

6
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
22

88
3.9

6
$ 

   
 

El
iza

be
th

 S
co

tt
38

.57
$ 

 
22

84
8.5

4
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
 

8
30

8.5
6

$ 
   

8
30

8.5
6

$ 
   

 
2

77
.14

$ 
   

 
6

23
1.4

2
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
 

46
1,7

74
.22

$ 
  

Al
ex

an
de

r W
ise

m
an

33
.88

$ 
 

4
13

5.5
2

$ 
   

   
   

16
54

2.0
8

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

10
33

8.8
0

$ 
   

4
13

5.5
2

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
34

1,1
51

.92
$ 

  
Sa

dh
an

a C
hu

kk
ula

29
.33

$ 
 

4
11

7.3
2

$ 
   

   
   

4
11

7.3
2

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
8

23
4.6

4
$ 

   
 

D
ir

ec
t 

L
ab

or
 S

ub
to

ta
l

55
2,3

36
.90

$ 
   

   
38

1,7
57

.90
$ 

42
2,0

32
.40

$ 
73

.5
3,7

69
.91

$ 
  

56
2,7

06
.78

$ 
32

1,5
28

.44
$ 

45
2,2

89
.07

$ 
34

1.5
16

,42
1.4

0
$ 

Sa
lar

y I
nc

re
as

es
 E

ffe
cti

ve
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 1

2.6
5%

61
.84

$ 
   

   
   

  
46

.52
$ 

   
 

53
.79

$ 
   

 
99

.77
$ 

   
   

71
.63

$ 
   

 
40

.45
$ 

   
 

60
.58

$ 
   

 
43

4.5
8

$ 
   

 
D

ir
e c

t 
L

ab
or

 T
ot

al
2,3

98
.74

$ 
   

   
1,8

04
.42

$ 
2,0

86
.19

$ 
3,8

69
.67

$ 
  

2,7
78

.41
$ 

1,5
68

.89
$ 

2,3
49

.65
$ 

16
,85

5.9
7

$ 

O
ve

rh
ea

d 
(o

n 
di

re
ct 

lab
or

)
14

6.3
1%

3,4
19

.12
$ 

   
   

2,5
71

.98
$ 

2,9
73

.60
$ 

5,5
15

.75
$ 

  
3,9

60
.29

$ 
2,2

36
.26

$ 
3,3

49
.14

$ 
24

,02
6.1

4
$ 

L
ab

or
 a

nd
 O

ve
ra

he
ad

 T
ot

al
5,7

56
.02

$ 
   

   
4,3

29
.88

$ 
5,0

06
.00

$ 
9,2

85
.65

$ 
  

6,6
67

.07
$ 

3,7
64

.70
$ 

5,6
38

.21
$ 

40
,44

7.5
4

$ 

D
ir

ec
t 

E
xp

en
se

s
Tr

av
el

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
54

5.0
0

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

54
5.0

0
$ 

   
 

Sh
ip

pi
ng

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

O
ut

sid
e G

ra
ph

ics
 &

 C
op

yin
g

32
0.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
32

0.0
0

$ 
   

 
Te

lec
on

fe
re

nc
ing

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 D

ir
ec

t 
E

xp
en

se
s

32
0.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
54

5.0
0

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
 

86
5.0

0
$ 

   
 

F
ac

ili
ti

es
 C

os
t 

of
 C

ap
it

al
0.2

4%
5.6

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

4.2
2

$ 
   

   
4.8

8
$ 

   
   

9.0
5

$ 
   

   
  

6.5
0

$ 
   

   
3.6

7
$ 

   
   

5.4
9

$ 
   

   
39

.41
$ 

   
   

T
ot

al
 C

os
ts

6,0
76

.02
$ 

   
   

4,3
29

.88
$ 

5,0
06

.00
$ 

9,8
30

.65
$ 

  
6,6

67
.07

$ 
3,7

64
.70

$ 
5,6

38
.21

$ 
-

$ 
   

   
41

,31
2.5

4
$ 

F
ee

9%
51

8.0
4

$ 
   

   
   

38
9.6

9
$ 

   
45

0.5
4

$ 
   

83
5.7

1
$ 

   
 

60
0.0

4
$ 

   
33

8.8
2

$ 
   

50
7.4

4
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
3,6

40
.28

$ 
  

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
ST

 P
L

U
S 

F
E

E
55

6,5
99

.67
$ 

   
   

38
4,7

23
.79

$ 
42

5,4
61

.42
$ 

73
.5

10
,67

5.4
1

$ 
56

7,2
73

.60
$ 

32
4,1

07
.19

$ 
45

6,1
51

.14
$ 

34
1.5

44
,99

2.2
3

$ 

T
as

k 
7-

 P
ro

je
ct

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 &

 Q
A

/Q
C

T
O

T
A

L

R
at

e
N

am
e

T
as

k 
1-

 
C

or
ri

do
r 

C
on

di
ti

on
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

T
as

k 
2 

- 
D

at
a 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

T
as

k 
3-

C
on

ce
pt

ua
l 

A
lt

er
na

ti
ve

s
T

as
k 

4-
 P

ub
lic

 I
nv

ol
ve

m
en

t

T
as

k 
5-

 C
or

ri
do

r 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s

T
as

k 
6-

 P
la

n 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t

126



 

    
 

APPENDIX B: Required Documents and Forms 
 
 
 
 
 

127



32

ATTACHMENT C:   LOCATION OF WORKERS UTILIZED BY VENDOR  

In accordance with NC General Statute 143-59.4, the Vendor shall detail the location(s) at which 

performance will occur, as well as the manner in which it intends to utilize resources or workers outside of 

the United States in the performance of this Contract. The City of Greenville will evaluate the additional 

risks, costs, and other factors associated with such utilization prior to making an award. Please complete 

items a, b, and c below.  

If the Vendor answered “YES” above, Vendor must complete items 1 and 2 below: 

1. List the location(s) outside the United States where work under this Contract will be performed by 

the Vendor, any sub-Contractors, employees, or other persons performing work under the 

Contract:

2. Describe the corporate structure and location of corporate employees and activities of the Vendor, 

its affiliates or any other sub-Contractors that will perform work outside the U.S.: 

c) Identify all U.S. locations at which performance will occur: 

This Space is Intentionally Left Blank 

a) Will any work under this Contract be performed outside the United States?  YES  NO 

b) The Vendor agrees to provide notice, in writing to the City of Greenville, of the 

relocation of the Vendor, employees of the Vendor, sub-Contractors of the Vendor, 

or other persons performing services under the Contract outside of the United 

States

 YES  NO 

NOTE: All Vendor or sub-Contractor personnel providing call or contact center services to 

the State of North Carolina under the Contract shall disclose to inbound callers the 

location from which the call or contact center services are being provided.  

128



33

[This Attachment may be modified or deleted]

ATTACHMENT D:  CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Name of Vendor: _______________________________________________________________ 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: [check all applicable boxes] 

 The Vendor is in sound financial condition and, if applicable, has received an unqualified audit 

opinion for the latest audit of its financial statements.  

 Date of latest audit: __________________________ 

 The Vendor has no outstanding liabilities, including tax and judgment liens, to the Internal Revenue 

Service or any other government entity. 

 The Vendor is current in all amounts due for payments of federal and state taxes and required 

employment-related contributions and withholdings. 

 The Vendor is not the subject of any current litigation or findings of noncompliance under federal 

or state law. 

 The Vendor has not been the subject of any past or current litigation, findings in any past litigation, 

or findings of noncompliance under federal or state law that may impact in any way its ability to 

fulfill the requirements of this Contract. 

 He or she is authorized to make the foregoing statements on behalf of the Vendor. 

Note:  This is a continuing certification and Vendor shall notify the Contract Lead within 15 days of 

any material change to any of the representations made herein. 

If any one or more of the foregoing boxes is NOT checked, Vendor shall explain the reason in the 

space below: 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature                                                                                                                  Date

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name                                                                                                            Title 

[This Certification must be signed by an individual authorized to speak for the Vendor] 

129



37

Sub-Service Provider Utilization Commitment 
 (Must be submitted after contract negotiation and prior to Award) 

We _________________________________________________________, do certify that on the
                               (Company Name) 
__________________________________ (Project) we will expend a minimum of ______% of the
total dollar amount of the contract with certified MBE firms and a minimum of ______% of the 
total dollar amount of the work with WBE.

Name, Address, & Phone Number of Sub-
Service Provider 

*MWBE 
Category

Work description % of Work

*Minority categories: Black, African American (B), Hispanic or Latino (L), Asian American (A) American Indian 
(I), 

Female (F) Socially and Economically Disadvantaged (S) Disabled (D)

The undersigned will enter into a formal agreement with MWBE firms for work listed in this 
schedule.  Failure to fulfill this commitment may constitute a breach of contract.   

The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she has read the terms of this commitment and is 
authorized to bind the submitter to the commitment herein set forth. 

Date:______________________

Name & Title of Authorized 
Representative_____________________________________________

Signature of Authorized 
Representative________________________________________________

130



41

ATTACHMENT G:  NCDOT FORM RS-2 

PRIME CONSULTANT  
TO BE USED WITH PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT ONLY 

RACE AND GENDER NEUTRAL

     
           TIP No. and/or Type of Work (Limited Services) 

      
(Consultant/Firm Name and Federal Tax Id) 

“PRIME CONCONSULTANT” (FORM RS-2) RACE AND GENDER NEUTRAL 
Instructions for completing the Form RS-2: 

1.    Complete a Prime Consultant Form RS-2 for the prime consultant firm. 

2. Insert TIP Number and /or Type of Work (Limited Services)  
3. Complete the Consultant/Firm name and Federal Tax ID Number for the primary firm 

information. 

4. Enter Service/Item Description – describe work to be performed by the Prime Firm 

5. Enter Anticipated Utilization – Insert dollar value or percent of work to the Prime Firm  

6. *Signature of the Prime Consultant is required on each RS-2 Form to be submitted with the 
Letter of Interest (LOI) to be considered for selection 

7. Complete “SPSF Status” section - Check the appropriate box regarding SPSF Status, check Yes if 
SPSF or No if not SPSF

SERVICE / ITEM DESCRIPTION Anticipated  
Utilization 

            

      

TOTAL UTILIZATION:       

RECOMMENDED BY: 
  CONSULTANT:  

    

  *BY:       

  TITLE:       

SPSF 
Status: Yes             No 

131



42

ATTACHMENT H:  CERTIFICATION OF DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBLITY, ETC… 

132



Proposal Number: [Add RFP #] Vendor: __________________________________________ 

43

ATTACHMENT I:  CERTIFICATION OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CERTIFICATION FOR 
CONSULTANTS/CONTRACTORS 

I certify that I have no present conflict of interest, that I have no knowledge of any  
conflict of interest that my firm may have, and that I will recuse myself from any capacity of decision making, approval, 
disapproval, or recommendation on any contract if I have a conflict of interest or a potential conflict of interest.   

Consultants/Contractors are expected to safeguard their ability to make objective, fair, and impartial decisions when 
performing work for the MPO, and therefore may not accept benefits of any sort under circumstances in which it could be 
inferred by a  
reasonable observer that the benefit was intended to influence a pending or future  
decision of theirs, or to reward a past decision. Consultants performing work for the  
MPO should avoid any conduct (whether in the context of business, financial, or social relationships) which might undermine 
the public trust, whether or not that conduct is unethical or lends itself to the appearance of ethical impropriety. 

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, all firms, must disclose if any Greenville Urban Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Board Members, Employee(s), Advisory Committee Member(s), of if any of its agencies 
is also an owner, corporate officer, agency, employee, etc., of their business. 

Indicate either “yes” (a MPO employee, elected official, or agency is also associated  
with your business), or “no”. If yes, give person(s) name(s) and position(s) with your  
business.  
  Yes____________  No____________ 

Name(s)      Position(s) 

I realize that violation of the above mentioned standards could result in the termination of my work for 
the City of Greenville and the MPO. 

DATE:___________________________ SIGNATURE:__________________________________ 

Company:_______________________ NAME:_____________________________________ 
      (Typed or Printed) 

Address:_________________________  TITLE:______________________________________ 

_________________________________

____________________________________

PHONE NO:______________________ E-MA 

133



Proposal Number: [Add RFP #] Vendor: __________________________________________ 

44

ATTACHMENT J:  NCDOT VENDOR REGISTRATION FORM, W-9 

134



 

    
 

APPENDIX C: Schedule of Work 
 

 
 
 
 
 

135



Scope of Services 
Worthington Road Corridor Study 

Winterville, NC 
 

October 9, 2018 (Revised 1/29/19)  
 

Purpose, Vision and Objectives 
The Town of Winterville is realizing explosive growth.  Though the Town is currently a modest 
population of around 10,000, the Town is expected to continue to receive significant population 
and employment growth.  Winterville is seen as a quality living environment with easy access to 
Greenville and other nearby markets. Managing growth and maintaining quality and accessible 
community corridors as the Town grows is essential for attracting employment growth. This 
includes a balance between residential and non-residential uses along major corridors that 
provide expected levels of multimodal transportation service. 
  
The purpose of this corridor study is to develop a corridor plan for Worthington Road, between 
Mill Street and Corey Road that establishes long term capacity under a balanced land use plan. 
The corridor study will evaluate current and future planned conditions, identify deficiencies and 
make recommendations to enhance connectivity and access for all modes of transportation and 
travel along the corridor, as well as create a vision for the corridor. Land and development patterns 
as well as strategies for a balanced transportation system will also be considered. Worthington 
Road will function as a gateway into the Town of Winterville and will connect future development 
with the downtown area, as well as providing connectivity for bicyclists and pedestrians. 
Maintaining a quality aesthetic context will also be important along the corridor. A preliminary 
study area figure is attached to this scope of services. 
 
This scope of services will assess existing and future conditions, established Town objectives, 
and provide recommendations for future transportation solutions that include service and safety 
improvements and operational efficiencies for the corridor.  It will identify potential alternatives 
and significant land use and development patterns for the Town to consider long term.  
 
Project Background and Related Projects 
The Worthington Road study corridor is approximately one mile in length and runs between Mill 
Street and Corey Road; 2016 AADT identified approximately 9,000 vehicles per day traveling on 
Worthington Road. It serves as an important east/west connector in eastern Winterville and traffic 
will continue to grow as more residences are developed over time on the existing farmland.  It 
also will serve as a gateway from the east into Winterville.   
 
As part of NCDOT’s project U-2817 to widen Old Tar Road, significant upgrades will occur to its 
intersection with Worthington Road.  This study will examine ways to tie the state’s improvements 
into Worthington Road to the east to emphasize a multi-modal transportation solution as well as 
a gateway to the Town. Due to its variety of existing and proposed land uses along Worthington 
Road, as well as planned and proposed land use changes and development, managing growth 
and development needs will be crucial to addressing transportation and land use compatibility 
and ensuring long-term viability of the corridor. 
 
1.0 Corridor Conditions Assessment 
The CONSULTANT will collect and analyze data about existing conditions for all travel modes 
(pedestrians, bicyclists, transit riders and motorists) and identify deficiencies and opportunities.  

 

136



1.1 Review of Current Plans 
 

The CONSULTANT will review the following Transportation and Planning 
documents provided by the TOWN: 

 Town Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 Zoning Ordinances and Maps 

 Economic Development Plans 

 Pending and Approved Development Plans 

 Greenway and open Space Plans 

 Land Development Plan and Thoroughfare Plan 
 
1.2 Review of Public Agency Documents 

 

The CONSULTANT will review relevant public agency documents listed below: 

 NCDOT supported transportation plans (funded/unfunded) 

 NCDOT Highway Safety Improvement Program projects 

 Pitt County Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

 Greenville Urban Area MPO Thoroughfare Plan 

 Plans and documents for U-2817 Old Tar Road widening 

 Plans and documents for U-5991 NC 43 widening 

 Plans and documents for the planned roundabout at Worthington Road and 
Corey Road 

 
1.3 Transportation 

 
The CONSULTANT will review the existing Transportation System noting the 
following: 

 Traffic patterns 

 Geometrics 

 Intersection and driveway operations 

 Pedestrian/Bicycle connectivity 

 Corridor access control 
 

1.4 Land Use 
 

The CONSULTANT will review land use plans noting the following: 

 General existing and future land use trends and patterns 

 Locations of pending approved development 

 Property and land uses and properties potentially subject to change 
 

1.5 Environmental Constraints 
 

The CONSULTANT will develop environmental constraint mapping using NCOne 
Map GIS data and other GIS based databases along a 500 foot corridor to identify 
challenges associated with: 

 Topography 

 Wetlands 

 Streams 

 Floodplains 

137



 Wildlife habitat 

 National Register of Historic Places 
 
Deliverables:   

 A section in the report that summarizes the existing conditions, deficiencies, 
conclusions of past studies and matrix of key issues.  This will be included in the 
final report. (1 electronic PDF) 

 Provide a section in the report that includes a summary of existing transportation, 
land use, and environmental conditions and discusses perceived challenges.  This 
will be inserted into the final study. (1 electronic PDF) 

 
2.0 Traffic Data Collection and Analysis 

 
2.1 Data Collection 
 

The CONSULTANT will obtain the following traffic data: 

 U-2817 Old Tar Road widening Traffic Forecast and Traffic Capacity 
Analysis 

 U-5991 NC 43 widening Traffic Forecast and Traffic Capacity Analysis 

 Any applicable traffic data for the planned roundabout at Worthington Road 
and Corey Road 

 
2.2 Traffic Analysis 
 

The CONSULTANT will perform a capacity study using planned volumes and 
design data from the traffic forecasts.  The analysis will be for a basic arterial 
roadway segment in Highway Capacity Software (HCS) to help guide the 
recommendations for the future cross section of the road (one or two lanes in each 
direction).  Because the sole major intersection (Old Tar Road and Worthington 
Road) in the study area is being upgraded as part of U-2817, no intersection 
capacity analysis will be performed as part of this study. 

 
Deliverables:  Provide a section within the report that presents the findings of the HCS 
analysis and how that will help guide the decision of the future cross section.  (1 electronic 
PDF) 
 

3.0 Conceptual Alternatives 
Based on existing conditions and project goals, the CONSULTANT will prepare two 
corridor scenarios for the corridor to identify ways to protect or improve corridor capacity, 
safety, and multimodal connectivity, in collaboration with the town staff and MPO. The 
scenarios will consider implications to or associated with current and future land use and 
development patterns, and offer preliminary ideas for mitigating or improving land use 
compatibility, including the possible establishment of land use “character districts” which 
will help inform access control and design recommendations.  
 

3.1 Conceptual Design 
Two alternatives will be prepared at a conceptual level, acknowledging that 
travel demand modeling will not be undertaken at this step, but could be 
beneficial as a follow-op action. The goal is to develop and illustrate likely 

138



feasible alternatives to elicit community preferences to the direction of 
physical and connectivity approaches in the corridor. 
 

3.2 Conceptual Rendering 
The CONSULTANT will create two renderings of alternatives in Google 
SketchUp to illustrate proposed roadway and streetscaping improvements 
along the corridor; renderings will be created at a street level perspective. 
The renderings will include proposed widths of sidewalks, planting strips, 
shoulders, lanes, medians and other elements of proposed improvements. 
 

3.3 Recommendation 
The CONSULTANT will coordinate with the town and MPO to compare and 
screen the two proposed corridor scenarios based on such factors as 
potential funding, mitigating factors, traffic operations and land use. and 
prepare a recommended corridor vision and plan.   

 
Deliverable:   

 Two high level sketch concepts prepared on corridor base maps illustrating 
alternative improvements with a short bulleted style memo summarizing the 
features and differences of each 

 Two conceptual renderings of proposed roadway/streetscape improvements. 
 

4.0 Public Involvement 
 
4.1 Project Kickoff Meeting (via Skype/Web Conference) 

 
The CONSULTANT will host a web meeting with the Town outlining the project 
and present initial research and background information gathered (area plans, 
traffic projections, land use plans, etc.).  The CONSULTANT will also discuss other 
information pertinent to the study with the Town. 
 

4.2 Alternatives and Recommendations Meeting (In-Person Meeting) 
 
The CONSULTANT will review with attendees the corridor scenarios (prepared in 
task 3.0) to determine improvement preferences for the corridor. 
Intergovernmental and interagency aspects of coordination will also be discussed 
at this meeting. Potential attendees include staff from the town, MPO, NCDOT and 
others as appropriate.  
 

4.3 Town Council Meeting Attendance and Presentation (In-Person Meeting) 
 

The CONSULTANT will attend and deliver a presentation for one Town Council 
meeting to present the study findings and deliver recommendations to the Town 
Council. 

 
Deliverables:   

 Alternatives and Recommendations Meeting Materials, including handouts and 
mapping 

 PowerPoint Presentation and Town Council meeting handout. 
 

139



5.0 Corridor Improvement Recommendations 
 

5.1 Accessibility and Connectivity 
 

The CONSULTANT will provide recommendations in the following areas:  

 Access management along the corridor 

 Active transportation improvements 

 Safety enhancements 
 

5.2 Multi-modal Roadway Improvements 
 

The CONSULTANT will provide recommendations in the following areas: 

 Typical section illustrating complete street design principles for 
Worthington Road 

o Proposed lane configurations 
o Recommendations for tying to the intersection improvements at Tar 

Road  
o Potential layouts at future intersections with subdivisions, business 

accesses 
o Bike lanes/paths 
o Sidewalks 
o Greenway access  

 Provide recommendations for future roadway improvements, developer 
responsibilities, etc. 
 

5.3 Land Use and Development Pattern Recommendations 
 

 Plan recommendations will be made in consideration of current and 
planned future land use area. Land use character districts may 
provide guidance on the type, spacing and level of access required 
to serve the corridor. Prototype improvements will be prepared. 

 The CONSULTANT will assess current land use conditions and 
future recommended land use patterns under current long range 
plans for the corridor. General policies and land use and 
development recommendations will be made consistent with 
current long-range plans and will consider the appropriateness of 
development controls including current available regulatory tools, 
corridor overlay, or form based controls. 

 
Deliverables:  Provide a section in the report that summarizes in text and/or visually 
depicts cross section recommendations, access management opportunities and land 
use/development recommendations. This will be inserted into the final study. (1 electronic 
PDF) 
 

6.0 Plan Creation, Adoption and Agreement 
 

The CONSULTANT will develop an initial project report outline and gain consensus from 
the Town in the early phases of the project to help guide the study process and develop 
the project report. 
 

140



The CONSULTANT will take into account comments and suggestions made by the town 
and any key stakeholders and prepare and submit a draft document that summarizes 
findings, challenges and presents draft recommendations, including cross sections.  The 
CONSULTANT will address comments prior to submitting the final document.  

 
Deliverables:  Final Worthington Road corridor document. (2 hard copies, 1 electronic 
PDF) 
 

7.0 Project Administration 
 

The CONSULTANT will provide project administration for the duration of the project.  This 
work will include the following tasks: 

 

 Develop work plan and coordinate project work with the Town  

 Develop and maintain project schedule 

 Establish project budgeting and maintain through course of project 

 Provide monthly invoices and status reports to the Town 
 
Deliverables:  Project milestone schedule, monthly invoices, and progress reports. 

 

141



V
e

rs
io

n
:

2
0

1
8

.(
0

9
.1

8
).

R
J
S

.L
E

P

T
IP

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

W
B

S
 N

U
M

B
E

R
(s

):

N
o

te
 1

: 
 P

o
p

u
la

te
s
 f

ro
m

 "
A

c
c
t 

In
it

ia
ti

o
n

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t"

 w
o

rk
s
h

e
e
t 

ta
b

.

N
o

te
 2

: 
 F

ir
m

 t
e
a
m

, 
fi

ll
 o

u
t 

W
B

S
 N

u
m

b
e
r(

s
) 

s
e
c
ti

o
n

 o
n

ly
 o

n
 t

h
is

 "
A

c
c
t 

In
it

ia
ti

o
n

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t"

 

w
o

rk
s
h

e
e
t 

ta
b

. 
 

N
o

te
 3

: 
 D

O
T

 t
e
a
m

, 
th

e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

fi
ll
s
 o

u
t 

th
e
 e

n
ti

re
 "

A
c
c
t 

In
it

ia
ti

o
n

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t"

 

w
o

rk
s
h

e
e
t 

ta
b

.

C
O

U
N

T
Y

: 

T
A

S
K

 O
R

D
E

R
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 (i

f a
pp

lic
ab

le
):

 

F
A

 N
U

M
B

E
R

 (i
f a

pp
lic

ab
le

):

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L
 N

U
M

B
E

R
: 

 

(V
er

si
on

 C
on

tr
ol

-if
 n

ee
de

d)
 (E

x.
  I

ni
tia

lV
2 

(in
iti

al
 e

st
im

at
e 

ve
rs

io
n 

2)
)

O
T

H
E

R
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IE
R

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

: 

(if
 n

ee
de

d)
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

: 

(L
is

t t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
ar

am
et

er
s;

 
w

he
re

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ta
rt

s 
an

d 
st

op
s)

D
IS

C
IP

L
IN

E
 U

S
E

D
: 

 

(L
is

t e
ac

h 
di

sc
ip

lin
e 

th
at

 w
ill

be
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

)

IT
E

M
M

D
C

O
S

T
C

O
S

T
/M

A
N

D
A

Y
M

D
C

O
S

T
C

O
S

T
/M

A
N

D
A

Y

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g
4

3
.3

1
3

4
4

,0
8

4
.3

3
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,0
1

7
.8

2
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g
D

ir
e

c
t 

C
o

s
ts

8
6

5
.0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

4
3

.3
1

3
4

4
,9

4
9

.3
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

0
.0

0
0

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

L
a

b
o

r,
 O

v
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 F

e
e

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 D

O
T

 U
N

IT
:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

:

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 F

IR
M

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 T
Y

P
E

:
L

U
M

P
 S

U
M

S
C

O
P

E
/M

A
N

D
A

Y
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

:
D

A
T

E
:

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1

8
, 

2
0

1
8

S
C

O
P

E
/M

A
N

D
A

Y
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

: 
D

A
T

E
:

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1

9
, 

2
0

1
8

P
O

 N
U

M
B

E
R

 (I
f A

va
ila

bl
e)

:

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 T
Y

P
E

:

A
n

n
e

 L
e

n
a

rt
-R

e
d

m
o

n
d

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 N
U

M
B

E
R

 (I
f 

A
pp

lic
ab

le
):

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
: 

(If
 th

is
 is

 a
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
l t

o 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 S

co
pe

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
s,

 s
ta

te
 re

as
on

 fo
r 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l.)

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

R
E

A
D

Y
 T

O
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
 F

IN
A

L
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

?

T
H

E
N

 C
L

IC
K

 T
H

E
 B

U
T

T
O

N
 T

O
 T

H
E

 R
IG

H
T

1
S

T
 S

T
E

P
 F

O
R

 F
IN

A
L

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
 

(S
E

E
 B

E
L

O
W

)

F
IN

A
L

D
IS

C
IP

L
IN

E

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 

- 
A

ll
 D

is
c

ip
li

n
e

s

IN
IT

IA
L

P
it
t

W
o

rt
h

in
g

to
n

 R
o

a
d

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

S
tu

d
y

K
a

ti
e

 C
u

rr
y
/J

u
s
ti
n

 C
a

ro
ll

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 :

 

S
T

V
 E

n
g

in
e

e
rs

, 
In

c
.

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-^

E
N

T
E

R
 A

 '1
', 

IF
 Y

E
S

. 
 -

--
->

 

1

142



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works 

Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Contract with Vaughn & Melton Consulting Engineers for Disaster Management, 
Recovery, and Consulting Services. 

Action Requested: Approve Contract.  

Attachments: Vaughn & Melton Submittal Package, RFQ including Standard Contract. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC: 2/4/2019  FD: 1/30/2019  TM: 2/6/2019  Final:  2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Proposals were received on December 18, 2018 for Disaster Management, Recovery, and Consulting 

Services for the Town of Winterville. These services are for the monitoring and oversight of collection and 

disposal of all debris generated by natural disasters or man-made emergencies. Staff evaluated the two 

proposals that were received and determined that Vaughn & Melton’s credentials and prior experience made 

them the best choice for the Town. They also have an office in New Bern, NC which is only approximately 1 

hour from the Town of Winterville. DRC Emergency Services was awarded the contract for the actual debris 

removal, and this contract is for the monitoring of those services to ensure compliance with applicable FEMA 

standards. This contract also provides for professional services assistance before, during, and after an event 

on an as needed basis. Services may include but are not limited to damage assessment, training, 

emergency planning, infrastructure restoration, and facilitating communication with FEMA. This will be an 

open contract with no actual cost to the Town until such time as the Town requests assistance from the 

vendor. The base contract length is for five (5) years. The standard contract document which is attached will 

be executed upon approval by Town Council and review by the Town Attorney. 

 

Budgetary Impact: No money is budgeted for natural disaster debris collection and removal each year. If an 

event were to occur that forced the Town to request assistance a budget amendment would need to be 

made at that time. The estimated contract amount for that event would also be determined at that time based 

on conditions. 

Recommendation: Approval of Contract. 

 

143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



Request for Proposals 
for 

Disaster Management, Recovery, and Consulting Services 
   

 

 
 
 

              
Deadline for Submittals 

December 18, 2018 
2:00 P.M. EST 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
Travis Welborn, P.E. 

Town of Winterville Public Works Director 
PO Box 1459 

Winterville, North Carolina 28590 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

167



November 4, 2018 
 
RE: Request for Proposals (RFP)  

Disaster Management, Recovery, and Consulting Services 
  
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The Town of Winterville is seeking qualified firms to provide disaster management, recovery, and consulting 
services for the Town of Winterville in the event of a natural disaster.  
 
Attached you will find a “Request for Proposals”, which identifies the project to be undertaken.   
 
In order to be considered, all proposals must be submitted in writing no later than 2:00 PM (EST) on December 
18, 2018.  Firms mailing proposal packages should allow delivery time to ensure timely receipt of their proposal.  
The responsibility for getting the proposal to the Town of Winterville Purchasing Department on or before the 
specified time and date is solely and strictly the responsibility of the proposing firm.  The Town will in no way be 
responsible for delays caused by any occurrence.  Proposals may be delivered to: 
 

Town of Winterville Purchasing Department  
Attention:  Kristin Godley, Purchasing Manager 

2571 Railroad St. (Courier) or PO Box 1459 (Mail) 
Winterville, NC  28590 

 
Hours of Operation:  8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. (EST) 

Monday through Friday 
Phone:  (252) 215-2349 

Email:  Kristin.godley@wintervillenc.com 
 

 
The award of a contract under this solicitation will be paid with federal funding.  Funding is contingent upon 
compliance with all terms and conditions of funding award.  All prospective firms shall comply with all applicable 
federal laws, regulations, executive orders, FEMA requirements and the terms and conditions of the funding 
award.  In addition, firms providing submittals shall be responsible for complying with state law and local 
ordinances. 
 
The Town of Winterville reserves the right to waive any informalities, to reject any and all responses. 
 
No proposal will be received or accepted after 2:00 PM, EST, December 18, 2018.  Late Proposals will be deemed 
invalid and returned unopened to the firm. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Travis Welborn, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
 
Attachments 

168



Table of Contents 
 
 
1. Purpose and General Information 

2. Scope of Services 

3. Desired Timetable 

4. Inquiries  

5. Submission Requirements 

6. Submission of Proposals 

7. General  

Attachments: 

 Non-Collusion Affidavit 

 Certification Regarding Lobbying 

 Proposer’s Bid Certification Form 

 Agreement (Sample) 

169



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Purpose and General Information 
 
 The Town of Winterville is requesting proposals from qualified firms to provide disaster management 

recovery and consulting services in the event of a natural disaster within the area. 
 
 Winterville is located within the coastal region of North Carolina and is home to Pitt Community College.  

The Town of Winterville encompasses approximately 4.5 square miles with a population of just under 
10,000.  

 
 The Town is seeking to enter into a five (5) year contractual agreement with a firm to provide the services 

contained within this RFP.     
  
2.  Scope of Services 
 
  The scope of services may include disaster management, recovery, and consulting services to support the 

oversight and management of debris recovery Contractors.  As such, the Consultant should be capable of 
providing a range of related services including damage assessment, debris monitoring, training, 
emergency planning, infrastructure restoration, and other services as needed and requested by the 
Town.  Other services may include, but not limited to, facilitating communication with FEMA, FHWA, the 
State of North Carolina and other state and federal agencies, coordination with state or county insurance 
representatives, pre-event planning, post-event reconstruction, grant funding, and reimbursement 
services. 

 
A.  Debris Monitoring Services  

  
The selected firm will be expected to provide debris monitoring services to include debris generated from 
the public rights-of-way, private property, drainage areas/canals, waterways, and other public, eligible, or 
designated areas.  Specific services may include: 

 
a. Coordinating daily briefings, work progress, staffing, and other key items with the Town. 

 
b. Selection and permitting of TDSRS locations and any other permitting/regulatory issues as necessary. 

 
c. Scheduling work for all team members and contractors on a daily basis.  

 
d. Hiring, scheduling, and managing field staff.  

 
e. Monitoring recovery contractor operations, and making/implementing recommendations to improve 

efficiency and speed up recovery work.  
 

f. Assisting the Town with responding to public concerns and comments.  
 

g. Certifying contractor vehicles for debris removal and maintain a truck certification list utilizing FEMA 
guidance.     

 
h. Entering load tickets into a database application. 

170



 
i. Digitization of source documentation (such as load tickets).   
 
j. Developing daily operational reports to keep the Town informed of work progress. 
 
k. Development of maps, GIS applications, etc. as necessary. 

 
l. Comprehensive review, reconciliation, and validation of debris removal contractor(s) invoices prior to 

submission to the Town for processing.  
 

m. Project Worksheet and other pertinent report preparation required for reimbursement by FEMA, 
FHWA and any other applicable agency for disaster recovery efforts by County staff and designated 
debris removal contractors. 

 
n. Final report and appeal preparation and assistance.   

 
B.  Emergency Management Planning and Training 
   

a. As directed by the County, the selected firm shall provide: Assist with review of the debris 
management plan – including identification of an adequate number of TDSRS locations.    

 
b. Project management to include the formulation and management of permanent work projects, task 

force management, and County Commissions, Boards and Panels.  
 

c. Technical support and assistance in developing public information regarding debris pick-up and 
safety.  

 
d. Other training and assistance as requested by the County. 

 
e. Other reports and data as required by the County. 

 
f. Other emergency management/consulting services identified/required by the County. 

   
C.   Damage Assessment and Reconstruction Services 

 
If requested, the selected firm shall provide post-disaster damage assessment and reconstruction 
services to include assessment, planning, engineering, and construction management services.  Specific 
areas where services may be requested include Town facilities, utility systems, transportation systems, 
and other sectors as required.  
 
 

3. Desired Timetable 
 

A.  RFP Issued   November 4, 2018  
B. Written Questions due  December 12, 2018 by 12:00 noon 
C. Responses to questions  December 14, 2018  
D. Submittals due   December 18, 2018 
E. Evaluation period   December 19 – 31, 2018  
F. Anticipated Contract Award February 11, 2019 

 

171



4. Inquiries  
 
 All questions pertaining to this RFP must be submitted in writing no later than 12:00 PM on December 

12, 2018.   Written questions should be emailed to: travis.welborn@wintervillenc.com 
 
Only written questions will be considered formal.  Any information given by telephone will be 
considered informal.  Any questions that the Town feels are pertinent to all proposers’ will be distributed 
as an addendum.  Responses to questions will be issued in the form of an Addendum no later than 
December 14, 2018.   

 
 

5. Submission Requirements    
 
 In order to evaluate responses efficiently and equitably, responses must be tabbed as identified below.  

Failure to submit this information may render your proposal non-responsive. 
 

Tab 1:  Introduction:  Company Information (Weight 10 points) 
 
 Each respondent shall provide the following company information: 
 

• Firm’s name and business address, including telephone, email address, website address. 
 

• The type of firm (individual, partnership, corporation, etc.) and list the names of all partners, 
principals, etc. 

 
• Year established. Include former firm/company name(s) and year(s) established, if applicable. 

 
• The name, title, address, and telephone number of the firm’s authorized negotiator. The person 

identified must be empowered to make binding commitments for the firm. 
 

• Provide a general discussion of the proposing firm’s technical approach to the project to include 
startup procedures/requirements, debris estimate methodology, analysis of debris recovery 
operations and management of the debris recovery contractors, billing/invoices reporting 
procedures to FEMA and the Town.   

 
  

Tab 2:  Qualifications of the Firm (Weight 10 points) 
 

• Provide an organizational chart and summary of staff qualifications.  Key project staff 
(management staff including, but not limited to: project manager, collection and disposal 
operations managers, FEMA reimbursement specialist, data manager, etc.) must be full time 
employees of the proposing firm.  

  
• List any professional training and experience, especially in relation to the type and magnitude of 

work required for the particular scope of services. 
 

Tab 3:  Past Experience (Weight 20 points)  
 

• Experience demonstrating current capacity and current expertise in debris removal, solid waste 
and hazardous waste management and disposal.  The proposer must demonstrate experience 

172



managing debris monitoring for government entities involving a minimum of 15,000 cubic yards 
of debris for each client.  
 

• Documented knowledge and experience of federal, state and local emergency agencies, state and 
federal programs, funding sources and reimbursement processes.  
 

• Experience with special disaster recovery program management services including private 
property/right-of-entry (ROE) work, waterways clean-up and reimbursement, FEMA appeals 
processing, hauler invoice reconciliation and contracting. 
 

• Experience managing Right-of-Entry debris removal and C&D debris separation and removal. 
 

Tab 4:  Delivery Schedule (Weight 5 points)  

• Provide a time line detailing the pre-event planning (based on hours/days after contract award).   

Tab 5:   References: Past Performance (Weight 15 points) 
 

• Provide references for which the firm has performed services within the past ten (10) years that 
are similar to the requirements in the Scope of Services.  It is preferred that references be from 
government entities for debris monitoring experience involving a minimum of 15,000 cubic yards 
of debris. Provide the reference contact name, address, e-mail address, telephone number(s), 
date of the contract, and amount of contract. 

 
Tab 6:  Hourly Rates (Weight 35 points)  

 
Tab 7:  Other Requirements (Weight 5 points)  
 

• Information concerning any pending, ongoing, or prior litigation within the last 10 years. 
 

 Tab 7:      Other Requirements – Continued 
  

• Any and all exceptions/deviations to the required Scope of Services and/or the Sample 
Agreement shall be documented on a separate page.   

 
6. Submission of Proposals 
 

A. Deadline: Submit three (3) original hardcopies to the Purchasing Manager.  Proposals shall be 
sealed and marked “RFP, Disaster Management, Recovery and Consulting Services.”   Sealed 
proposals must be received by 2:00 PM EST, on December 18, 2018, at the Office of the Town of 
Winterville Purchasing Manager, 2571 Railroad St., Winterville, NC 28590.  The original hardcopy 
submittal must be received by the time and date stated above.   

 
B. Addenda:  Each Proposer is responsible for determining that all addenda issued by the Town of 

Winterville has been received before submitting a proposal. 
 

C. Identification:  The outside of the envelope should be marked “RFP, Disaster Management, 
Recovery, and Consulting Services.” 

 

173



D. Time is of the essence:  Any proposal received after the announced time and date for submittal, 
whether by mail or otherwise, will be rejected.  It is the sole responsibility of the firm for ensuring 
that their proposal is received by the Purchasing Manager before the deadline indicated above. The 
Town will in no way be responsible for delays caused by any occurrence.   

 
E. Preparation of Response:  The firm’s proposal should be prepared simply and economically and 

should provide all the information which it considers pertinent to its proposal and qualifications for 
the work to be performed.  Emphasis should be placed on completeness of services offered and 
clarity of content. The response should be limited to twenty-five (25) pages. 

 
F. Propriety Information:  Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by a proposer, in 

connection with a procurement transaction shall not be subject to the public disclosure under the 
Freedom of Information Act.  However, the proposer must invoke the protection of this section 
prior to or upon submission of the data or other materials, and must identify the data on other 
materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary. 

 
Each individual page shall be identified in boldface at the top as "CONFIDENTIAL" in a font size of 
14 or larger.  Any section of the proposal that is to remain confidential shall also be so marked in 
boldface on the title page of that section along with each individual page within that section.  Cost 
information and any other public information may not be deemed confidential; therefore, it is 
requested that firms only mark the necessary confidential pages. 

 
G. Binding: Submittals must include the proposer’s bid certification form (contained within) signed by 

an authorized representative of the company/firm to legally bind the offer.  All proposals submitted 
without such signature may be deemed non-responsive.   
 

H. Miscellaneous:  Nothing herein is intended to exclude any responsibilities or in any way restrain or 
restrict competition.  All firms are encouraged to submit proposals.  The Town of Winterville 
reserves the right to waive any informalities, to reject any and/or all proposals.  In addition, the 
Town reserves the right to cancel a solicitation at any time prior to the award of a contract. 

 
7.  General 

 

A. Time for Consideration:  The Town shall have a period of ninety (90) calendar days from due date of 
the proposals in which to award the contract.  The Proposer shall be bound by their proposal during 
that time. A firm may withdraw a proposal by written request prior to the date and time of the 
proposal opening or after the 90-day time for consideration if a contract has not been awarded. 

 
B. Contract Term:  It is the intent of the Town to enter into a five (5) year contract.   

 
C. Evaluation of Submittals:  Evaluation factors have been identified in Section 5 “Submission 

Requirements.”  Proposals will only be evaluated on the factors included within this RFP. A committee 
will evaluate all responses received by scoring them on the weighted system provided.   

 
 The evaluation committee will be comprised of Town personnel to include the Town Manager, 

Assistant Town Manager, and Public Works Director. 
 

The Town is not required to hold interviews; however, depending on the number of responses and 
the information contained in the responses, the Town may decide to conduct interviews with firms 
that the committee believes have demonstrated within their proposal the required experience and 

174



qualifications of the firm.  In addition, the firm’s experience, references, and past performance on 
public contracts will be considered.  

 

D. Contract Award.  The contract shall be awarded to the lowest responsive responsible bidder 
possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the contract.  
Consideration shall also be given to the company’s integrity, compliance with public policy, record of 
past performance, references, and financial and technical resources.  

 

E. Contracting with small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus 
area firms: The Town of Winterville encourages all businesses, including minority and/or women 
owned businesses to respond to all Request for Proposals.  In addition, if subcontracts are let, the 
awarded contractor must ensure that the necessary affirmative steps are taken: 

 
a. Place qualified small, minority, and woman-owned businesses on solicitations lists; 

 
b. Assure that such businesses are solicited when they are potential sources; 

 
c. Divide total requirement, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to 

permit maximum participation by such businesses; 
 

d. Establish delivery schedules, where requirements permits, which encourage such businesses 
to respond; 

 
e. Use service and assistance from such organization as SBA, minority business development 

agency of the Dept. of Commerce; 
 

F. Activation of Contract.  Should the contract be activated, fees will be estimated based off the initial 
assessment of damages occurred. 

 

G. Funding Source: Payment for services under contract by this solicitation will be paid with federal 
funding.  Funding is contingent upon compliance with all terms and conditions of funding award.  The 
selected firm shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, executive orders, FEMA 
requirements and the terms and conditions of the funding award.   

 
H. Compliance by Awarded Contractor:  The awarded contractor shall comply with all applicable federal 

laws, regulations, executive orders, FEMA requirements and the terms and conditions of the funding 
award.  In addition, firms providing submittals shall be responsible for complying with state law and 
local ordinances. 

 
I. Certification of Proposer Regarding Debarment.  By submitting a proposal under this solicitation, 

the Proposer or offeror certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred or 
suspended by any Federal department or agency from participation in this transaction. 

 
  

 
  

175



NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT          Town of Winterville 
                 
      

 

____________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 

 

l. He/She is the ___________________ of ___________________________, the proposer that has 

submitted the attached proposal; 

 

2. He/She is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached proposal and of 

all pertinent circumstances respecting such proposal; 

 

3. Such proposal is genuine and is not a collusive or sham proposal; 

 

4. Neither the said proposer nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, 

employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, 

connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other proposer firm or Person to submit a 

collusive or sham proposal in connection with the contract for which the attached proposal has 

been submitted or to refrain from proposing in connection with such contract, or has in any 

manner, directly or indirectly sought by agreement or collusion of communication or conference 

with any other proposer, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached proposal or of any 

other proposers, or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the proposal price of the proposal 

of any other proposer or to secure through collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful 

agreement any advantage against the Town of Winterville or any person interested in the 

proposed contract; and  

 

5. The price or prices quoted in the attached proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any 

collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the proposer or any of its 

agents, representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant. 

 

       ________________________________________ 
        Signature 
        
       Printed Name: ____________________________ 
 
       Title: ____________________________________ 
        
       Date: ___________________________________ 

 
Subscribed and Sworn to Before Me, 

This ______ day of ___________________, 2018 

Notary Public _____________________________ 

My Commission Expires: ____________________ 

176



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
 “Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended) 
 

This certification requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs.   
Consultants that apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification required 
by 49 C.F.R. part 20, “New Restrictions on Lobbying.”  Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not 
and has not used federally appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, 
grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any 
registrant under the Lobby Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-
federal funds with respect to that federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Such 
disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Town.  
 
The offeror, by signing its offer, hereby certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, 
the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance 
with its instructions. 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

The Consultant, ____________________________________________________, certifies or affirms the 
truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the 
Consultant understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., apply to this 
certification and disclosure, if any. 
 
____________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Signature of Consultant’s Authorized Official  Printed Name and Title of Consultant’s Authorized Official 

Date: _______________________________ 
 

177



PROPOSER’S BID CERTIFICATION FORM 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
I have carefully examined the Request for Proposals and any other documents accompanying or make a 
part of this Request for Proposals. 
 
I hereby propose the following hourly rates.  Hourly rates shall include all costs associated with the 
required services.  No additional payment will be made for hotels, per diem, fuel, etc.  I agree that my 
proposal will remain firm a period of up to 90 days in order to allow the Town adequate time to evaluate 
the proposals. 
 

NOTE:  Proposers bid certification form must be notarized – see next page. 

 

POSITIONS    HOURLY RATES   

Project Manager   $______________   

Operations Managers   $______________   

Schedule/Expeditors   $______________   

GIS Analyst    $______________   

Field Supervisors   $______________   

Debris Site/Tower Monitors  $______________   

Environmental Specialist  $______________   

Project Inspectors    $______________   
(citizen drop-off site monitors) 

  
Load Ticket Data Entry Clerks $______________   

Billing/Invoice Analysts  $______________   

Administrative Assistants  $______________   

Field Coordinators (crew monitors) $______________   

 
 

Other Required Positions   
(please specify)   $______________   

 
  please specify)   $______________  
 

please specify)   $______________  
 

Proposer may include other positions, with hourly rates and attach job description for each position. 
 

I certify that all information contained in this proposal is truthful to the best of my knowledge and belief.  I 
further certify that I am duly authorized to submit this proposal on behalf of the firm as its act and deed 
and that the firm is ready, willing and able to perform if awarded the contract. 
 
 
 
 

178



 
I further certify, under oath, that this proposal is made without prior understanding, agreement, 
connection, discussion, or collusion with any other person, firm or corporation submitting a proposal for 
the same product or service; no officer employee or agent of the Town of Winterville or any other 
proposer is interested in said proposal; and that the undersigned executed this Proposer’s Certification 
with full knowledge and understanding of the matters therein contained and was duly authorized to do 
so. 
 
This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund the contract only.  The 
Consultant will comply with all applicable federal laws regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, 
procedures, and directives.  
 
It is distinctly understood that the Town of Winterville reserves the right to reject any or all proposals. 
 
 
_________________________________  Federal Tax ID: ______________________  
NAME OF FIRM 

       Phone: _____________________________ 
_________________________________   
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE    Fax: _______________________________ 
   
_________________________________  Email: ______________________________ 
NAME & TITLE, TYPED OR PRINTED   
        

_________________________________  Subscribed and sworn to before me   
MAILING ADDRESS     this _____ day of _______________________, 2018  
       
__________________________________  _________________________________________ 

CITY, STATE,  ZIP CODE     Notary Public      
        

My Commission expires: ______________________________ 
            (SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS FORM MUST BE NOTARIZED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

179



Sample Agreement 
The awarded firm will be required to enter into a contract issued by the Town.  Any exceptions to 
the terms of this Agreement or additional terms must be included as requested in TAB 7.  
  
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
CONSULTING CONTRACT  

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
 
 

 
THIS CONTRACT is made, and entered into this the _____ day of _________, by and between the TOWN of 
WINTERVILLE a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina, (hereinafter referred to as “TOWN”), and 
____________________,  (hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”).  
 
For and in consideration of mutual promises to each as herein after set forth, the parties hereto do mutually agree 
as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, _______________________, acting as an independent Consultant, is a Consultant with extensive 
experience in providing disaster management and recovery services and shall provide said services in a 
professional manner in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the standard of care 
practiced by professionals performing similar services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the services provided include, but are not limited to, Disaster Debris Monitoring Services, 
Emergency Management Planning and Training, Damage Assessment, and Reconstruction Services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town wishes to enter into a contractual agreement with Consultant to provide professional 
consulting services in accordance with this Request for Proposal issued October 2018.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
parties agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. CONSULTANT hereby agrees to provide the services and/or materials under this 
Contract pursuant to the provisions identified in Attachment 1 “Scope of Services” (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as “Services”) and Attachment 2 “Federal Contracting Requirements.” Attachments1 and 2 are hereby 
incorporated herein and made a part of this Contract.   
 
Authorizations for Services shall be referred to as “Task Orders.” Each Task Order form shall set forth a specific 
Scope of Services, amount of compensation and completion date. 
 
 
2. TERM OF CONTRACT. The Term of this Contract for services is from__________, 2018 to 
______________, 2023, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 

 
This Contract is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified services and may be terminated at any 
time during the term upon thirty (30) days’ notice if such funds become unavailable. 
 
3. ACTIVATION OF CONTRACT.  Should activation of a contract become necessary, the TOWN and 
CONSULTANT will negotiate a “Fixed Price” amount for the services required within this Agreement. This 
Contract is deemed activated upon the agreement of fixed price and execution of this Contract.  
 
4. COMPENSATION. CONTRACTOR shall receive from TOWN an amount not to exceed                            
_____________________________ ($ ____________) as full compensation for the provision of Services.  TOWN 
agrees to pay CONTRACTOR at the rates specified for Services performed to the satisfaction of the TOWN, in 
accordance with this Contract, and Attachment 1. Unless otherwise specified, CONTRACTOR shall submit an 
itemized invoice to TOWN by the end of the month during which Services are performed.  A Purchase Order 

180



number may be assigned to encumber the funds associated with this Contract and must appear on all invoices and 
correspondence mailed to Purchaser.  Payment will be processed promptly upon receipt and approval of the invoice 
by TOWN. 
 
5. TIME FOR COMPLETION.  Time is of the essence and the Consultant shall begin work immediately 
following issuance of a written Task Order.  All services shall be completed in accordance with the project 
schedule associated with each Task Order. 

 
6. INVOICES. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoice for services rendered.  Invoices shall include a 
statement of progress and appropriate detail to satisfy Town and current FEMA requirements. Invoices must 
reference the Purchase Order number.   

   
  All invoices shall be delivered to: 
  Attn:  Travis Welborn, P.E. 
  Public Works Director 
  PO Box 1459 
  Winterville, North Carolina 28590 

 
7. RETAINAGE. The TOWN may retain five percent (5%) of the value of each Task Order until such time as 
the project deliverables, as defined in the Task Order, are completed to reasonable professional standards and all 
sub-consultants and material suppliers verify receipt of all payment for which they are entitled under the terms of 
the Consultant’s contract with the sub-consultant.  

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. TOWN and CONSULTANT agree that CONSULTANT is an 
independent Consultant and shall not represent itself as an agent or employee of TOWN for any purpose in the 
performance of CONSULTANT’s duties under this Contract.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT shall be responsible 
for payment of all federal, state and local taxes as well as business license fees arising out of CONSULTANT’s 
activities in accordance with this Contract. For purposes of this Contract taxes shall include, but not be limited to, 
Federal and State Income, Social Security and Unemployment Insurance taxes. 
 
CONSULTANT, as an independent Consultant, shall perform the Services required hereunder in a professional 
manner and in accordance with the standards of applicable professional organizations and licensing agencies. 
 
9. STANDARD OF CARE. CONSULTANT will perform services under this Agreement with the degree of skill 
and diligence normally practiced by professional CONSULTANTS performing the same or similar services and 
CONSULTANT shall, at no additional cost to the TOWN, re-perform services which fail to satisfy the foregoing 
standard of care.   

 
The CONSULTANT will represent that all services be performed by competent personnel. The CONSULTANT 
hereby represents that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its 
business and perform all Services under this Agreement, and that it will at all times conduct its business activities 
in accordance with this contract.  Except as may be otherwise provided for in this Agreement, CONSULTANT 
shall be responsible for obtaining, at its own expense, all permits and approvals necessary to perform the Services 
under this Agreement for each project. 

 
The CONSULTANT acknowledges that a portion of its fees may be reimbursed to TOWN by state or federal 
governments and CONSULTANT and TOWN agree to work together to modify or alter billing procedures as may 
be necessary to satisfy state or federal payment regulations or requirements. 
 
TERMINATION OF CONTRACT.  Termination of this Contract shall be in accordance with the Termination 
Clause contained in Attachment 2.    
 

181



11.  INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE. To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, the 
CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN and its officials, agents, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to 
fees and charges of engineers or architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or 
arbitration) arising out of or resulting from the performance of this Contract or the actions of the CONSULTANT 
or its officials, employees, or Consultants under this Contract or under the contracts entered into by the 
CONSULTANT in connection with this Contract.  This indemnification shall survive the termination of this 
Contract. 
 
In addition, CONSULTANT shall comply with the North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Act and shall provide 
for the payment of workers’ compensation to its employees in the manner and to the extent required by such Act.  
 
The Consultant shall secure and maintain during the duration of the activated contract, at his/her sole expense, the 
following types and limits of insurance described below:       

 
A. Workers' Compensation - The Consultant shall provide coverage for its employees with statutory workers' 

compensation limits, and no less than $1,000,000.00 for Employers' Liability.  Said coverage shall include 
a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town and its agents, employees and officials.  
  

B. Commercial General Liability - The Consultant shall provide coverage for all operations including, but not 
limited to Contractual, Products and Completed Operations, and Personal Injury.  The limits shall be not 
less than $1,000,000.00, per occurrence, with a $2,000,000.00 aggregate.  
  

C. Business Automobile Liability - The Consultant shall provide coverage for all owned, non-owned and 
hired vehicles with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00, per occurrence, Combined Single Limits (CSL) 
or its equivalent.  
  

D. Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions) - The Consultant shall provide coverage for all claims arising 
out of the services performed with limits not less than $1,000,000.00 per claim.  The aggregate limit shall 
either apply separately to this contract or shall be as least twice the required per claim limit.  
 

Insurance policies, except Workers’ Compensation, shall be endorsed (1) to show the Town of WInterville as an 
additional insured, as their interests may appear, and (2) to amend cancellation notice to 45 days, pursuant to North 
Carolina Law. 

 
CONSULTANT, upon execution of this Contract, shall furnish to the TOWN a Certificate of Insurance reflecting 
the minimum limits stated above. The Certificate shall provide for thirty-(30) days advance written notice in the 
event of a decrease, termination or cancellation of coverage. Providing and maintaining adequate insurance 
coverage is a material obligation of the CONSULTANT.  All such insurance shall meet all laws of the State of 
North Carolina.  Such insurance coverage shall be obtained from companies that are authorized to provide such 
coverage and that are authorized by the Commissioner of Insurance to do business in North Carolina.  The 
CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with the terms of such insurance policies, and all requirements of the 
insurer under any such insurance policies, except as they may conflict with existing North Carolina laws or this 
Contract.  The limits of coverage under each insurance policy maintained by the CONSULTANT shall not be 
interpreted as limiting the CONSULTANT’s liability and obligations under the Contract. 
 
Copies or originals of certificates, endorsements, or other items pertaining to insurance shall be sent to:  Town of 
Winterville Purchasing Manager, PO Box 1459, Winterville, NC 28590. 
 
12.  NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT.  CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of age, sex, race, creed, national origin, or disability. 
CONSULTANT shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated 
fairly and legally during employment with regard to their age, sex, race, creed, national origin, or disability.  In the 

182



event CONSULTANT is determined by the final order of an appropriate agency or court to be in violation of any 
non-discrimination provision of federal, state or local law or this provision, this Contract may be canceled, 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part by TOWN, and CONSULTANT may be declared ineligible for further 
TOWN contracts. 
 
13. OWNERSHIP OF WORK.  All Work and any documents prepared by the CONSULTANT for or on account 
of this Contract shall be the owned by the TOWN, and the TOWN shall have all common law, statutory and other 
reserved rights, including copyright.  
 
Submission or distribution of documents to meet official regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in 
connection with the project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of the TOWN’s reserved rights. 
 
14. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. CONSULTANT shall not assign its interest in this Contract without the 
written consent of the TOWN. 
 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  CONSULTANT represents that it is in compliance with all Federal, State, 
and local laws, regulations or orders including, Executive Order 11246, as amended or supplemented, which is 
hereby incorporated by reference.  The implementation of this Contract will be carried out in strict compliance 
with all Federal, State, or local laws regarding discrimination in employment. 
 
16. GOVERNING LAW.  Unless otherwise specified, this contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
North Carolina.  All litigation arising out of this contract shall be commenced in the appropriate division of the 
General Court of Justice in Pitt County, North Carolina. 
 
17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. CONSULTANT and TOWN shall attempt to resolve conflicts or disputes under 
this Agreement in a fair and reasonable manner.   If an informal resolution cannot be achieved to attempt to 
mediate the conflict between the Consultant and the TOWN, all litigation shall be commenced in the appropriate 
division of the General Court of Justice in Pitt County, North Carolina.  

 
18. E-VERIFY. As a condition of payment for services rendered under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall 
comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  Further, if CONSULTANT 
provides the services to the Town utilizing a sub-consultant, CONSULTANT shall require the sub-consultant to 
comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes as well.  CONSULTANT shall 
verify, by affidavit, compliance of the terms of this section upon request by the Town. 
 
19. IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT.   CONSULTANT certifies that they are not listed on the Final Divestment List 
created by the State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-6A-4.  Individuals or companies on the Final Divestment 
List are ineligible to contract or subcontract with Local Government Units. (G.S. 143C-6A-6(a).) It is the 
responsibility of each CONSULTANT to monitor compliance with this restriction.  Contracts valued at less than 
$1,000.00 are exempt from this restriction. 
 
20. DIVESTMENT FROM COMPANIES THAT BOYCOTT ISRAEL.  The CONSULTANT certifies that it 
has not been designated by the North Carolina State Treasurer as a company engaged in the boycott of Israel 
pursuant to N.C.G.S. 147-86.81.  It is the responsibility of each CONSULTANT to monitor compliance with this 
restriction.  Contracts valued at less than $1,000.00 are exempt from this restriction. 
 
21. GOOD STANDING WITH TOWN.  CONSULTANT certifies that it is not delinquent on any taxes, fees, or 
other debt owed by CONSULTANT to TOWN.  CONSULTANT covenants and agrees to remain current on any 
taxes, fees, or other debt owed by CONSULTANT to TOWN during the Term of this Contract.  
 
22. NOTICES.  All notices which may be required by this contract or any rule of law shall be effective when 
received by certified mail as follows: 

 

183



 
 
 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE      

 ATTN: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
  2571 Railroad Street 
  Winterville, NC 28590 

  
     
 CONSULTANT:  
    
     
 

23.   ACCESS AND AUDIT RIGHTS. CONSULTANT shall maintain adequate financial and program records to 
justify all charges, expenses, and costs incurred in estimating and performing the work under this Agreement for at 
least five (5) years following final payment to the TOWN as Federal Emergency Management Agency sub-grantee 
as required by FEMA’s 322 Public Assistance Guide, as amended, or any similar regulation, policy, or document 
adopted by FEMA subsequent to the execution of this Agreement.  The TOWN shall have access to all records, 
documents and information collected and/or maintained by others in the course of the administration of the 
Agreement.  This information shall be made accessible at the CONSULTANT’S place of business to the TOWN, 
including the Comptroller’s Office and/or its designees, for purposes of inspection, reproduction and audit without 
restriction.  
 
24.  ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND FUNDING.  This Agreement may be subject to the annual 
appropriation of funds by the Town of Winterville Town Council.  Notwithstanding any provision herein to the 
contrary, in the event that funds are not appropriated for this Agreement, then Town shall be entitled to 
immediately terminate this Agreement, without penalty or liability, except the payment of all contract fees due 
under this Agreement up to and through the last day of service. Payment for services under contract by this 
solicitation will be paid with federal funding.  Funding is contingent upon compliance with all terms and 
conditions of funding award.  The selected firm shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, 
executive orders, FEMA requirements and the terms and conditions of the funding award.   
 
25.  SAFETY. CONSULTANT and its employees will observe the posted safety requirements of the TOWN and 
those required by law.  CONSULTANT is responsible for the safety of its employees at all times while on the 
TOWN’s premises. 

 
26. TOWN NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR EXPENSES.  TOWN shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any 
expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 
27. EQUIPMENT. CONSULTANT shall supply, at its sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and/or 
supplies required to provide contracted services unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 
28. ENTIRE CONTRACT. This Contract, including Attachment 1 and Attachment 2, shall constitute the entire 
understanding between TOWN and CONSULTANT and shall supersede all prior understandings and agreements 
relating to the subject matter hereof and may be amended only by written mutual agreement of the parties. 
 
29. HEADINGS. The subject headings of the paragraphs are included for purposes of convenience only and shall 
not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its provisions.  This contract shall be deemed to have been 
drafted by both parties and no purposes of interpretation shall be made to the contrary. 
 
30.EXISTENCE. CONSULTANT warrants that It is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and  in good 
standing under the laws of the State of North Carolina and is duly qualified to do business in the State of North 
Carolina and has full power and authority to enter into and fulfill all the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

184



 
31. CORPORATE AUTHORITY. By execution hereof, the person signing for CONSULTANT below certifies 
that he/she has read this Contract and that he/she is duly authorized to execute this Contract on behalf of the 
CONSULTANT.   

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this 
Consulting Contract to be executed by their duly authorized office or agent.   
 
 

Reviewed by Department Head    CONSULTANT 

____________________________________   By: ____________________________________ 

Date Reviewed: _______________________   Printed Name:     

        Title:   

 

 
 
        TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the   By:_____________________________________
  
manner required by the Local Government     
and Fiscal Control Act      Printed Name:     
  
___________________________________   Title:   
Town of Winterville Finance Director 
 
 
 
 
 

“ATTACHMENTS 1 and 2 to follow 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

185



 
ATTACHMENT 1 

Scope of Services 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

Federal Contracting Requirements 
 
This Attachment 2 is incorporated into the Service Contract between the Town and the Consultant.  
Capitalized terms not defined in this Attachment shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the 
Contract.  All references to the “Consultant” or “Company” or “Vendor” or “Provider” shall be deemed to 
mean the Consultant. 
 
This Contract will be funded in whole or in part with federal funding.  As such, federal laws, regulations, 
policies and related administrative practices apply to this Contract.  The most recent of such federal 
requirements, including any amendments made after the execution of this Contract shall govern the 
Contract, unless the federal government determines otherwise.  This Attachment 2 identifies the federal 
requirements that may be applicable to this contract.  The Consultant is responsible for complying with all 
applicable provisions, updates or modifications that occur in the future relating to these clauses.   
 
To the extent possible, the federal requirements contained in the most recent version of  the Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for federal awards (Uniform Rules) codified at 2.C.F.R., Part 200, including 
any certifications and contractual provisions required by any federal statutes or regulation referenced 
therein to be included in this contract are deemed incorporated into this contract by reference and shall be 
incorporated into any subagreement or subcontract executed by the Consultant pursuant to its obligations 
under this Contract.  The Consultant and its sub-consultants, if any, hereby represent and covenant that 
they are have complied and shall comply in the future with the applicable provisions of the original 
contract then in effect and with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and rules and local 
policies and procedures, as amended from time to time, relating to Work to be performed under this 
contract. 
 
Drug Free Workplace Requirements 
 
Drug-free workplace requirements in accordance with Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub 100-690, 
Title V, Subtitle D).  All consultants entering into federal funded contracts over $100,000 must comply 
with Federal Drug Free workplace requirements as Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988.   
 
Contractor Compliance 
 
The Consultant shall comply with all uniform administrative requirements, cost principles, and audit 
requirement for federal awards. 
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
The Consultant must disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest to the Town of Winterville or 
pass through entity in accordance with federal policy.    
 
 

186



Mandatory Disclosures 
 
The Consultant must disclose in writing all violations of federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or 
gratuity violations potentially affecting the federal award.  
 
Energy Conservation 
 
The Consultant and Sub-consultants agrees to comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating 
to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with 
the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U.S.C.  § 6321, et seq. 
 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
 
For contracts in excess of $150,000, the Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders 
or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et 
seq. 
 
The Consultant agrees to report each violation to the Town and understands and agrees that the Town 
will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to Federal Emergency Management 
Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 
 
The Consultant agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 
whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.” 
 
Clean Air Act 
 
For contracts in excess of $150,000, the Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders 
or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. and the Federal 
Water Pollution Act as amended (33 USC § 1251-1387). 

 
The Consultant agrees to report any violation to the Town immediately upon discovery.  The Consultant 
understands and agrees that the Town will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification 
to the County, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) Regional Office.  Consultant must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceed 
$150,000. 

The Consultant agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 
whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA. 

Access to Records and Reports 
 
The Consultant must maintain an acceptable cost accounting system.  The Consultant agrees to provide 
the Town, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their 
authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Consultant which 
are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and 
transcriptions.   
 
The Consultant agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to 
copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 

187



 
The Consultant agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized representatives access to 
construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. 
 
All Consultants a nd their successors, transferees, assignees, and sub-consultants acknowledge and agree 
to comply with applicable provisions governing Department and FEMA access to records, accounts, 
documents, information, facilities, and staff. 
 
No Obligation by Federal Government 
 
The Town and the Consultant acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the 
Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the 
express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract 
and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Town, the Consultant, or any other party 
(whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.  
 
The Consultant agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with 
federal assistance.  It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the sub-
consultant who will be subject to its provisions. 
 
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts 
 
The Consultant acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements) applies to the Consultant’s actions pertaining to this contract. Upon execution of the 
underlying contract, the Consultant certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it 
has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the 
Federally assisted project for which this contract work is being performed.  In addition to other penalties 
that may be applicable, the Consultant further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, 
fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves 
the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Consultant to 
the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.  The Consultant also acknowledges that if it makes, 
or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the 
Federal Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 
U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Consultant, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.  
 
The Consultant agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 
with Federal assistance.  It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the 
sub-consultant who will be subject to the provisions.   
 
Changes 
 
Any change in the contract cost, modification, change order, or constructive change must be allowable, 
allocable, within the scope of its funding, grant or cooperative agreement, and reasonable for the 
completion of project scope.  All changes and/or amendments to the contract will be outlined in detail, 
formalized in writing, and signed by the authorized representative of each party.  Consultants failure to do 
so shall constitute a material breach of the contract. 
 

188



 
Termination 
 
Termination Without Cause.  The Town may immediately terminate this Agreement at any time without 
cause by giving written notice to the Consultant.  
 
Termination for Default by Either Party. By giving written notice to the other party, either party may 
terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of one or more of the following events: 
 
The other party violates or fails to perform any covenant, provision, obligation, term or condition 
contained in this Agreement, provided that, unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, such failure or 
violation shall not be cause for termination if both of the following conditions are satisfied:  (i) such 
default is reasonably susceptible to cure; and (ii)  the other party cures such default within thirty  (30) days 
of receipt of written notice of default from the non-defaulting party; or 
 
The other party attempts to assign, terminate or cancel this Agreement contrary to the terms hereof; or 
 
The other party ceases to do business as a going concern, makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, 
admits in writing its inability to pay debts as they become due, files a petition in bankruptcy or has an 
involuntary bankruptcy petition filed against it (except in connection with a reorganization under which 
the business of such party is continued and performance of all its obligations under this Agreement shall 
continue), or if a receiver, trustee or liquidator is appointed for it or any substantial part of other party’s 
assets or properties. 
 
Any notice of default pursuant to this Section shall identify and state the party’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement if the default is not cured within the specified period.   
 
Additional Grounds for Default Termination by the Town. By giving written notice to the Consultant, 
the County may also terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of one or more of the following events 
(which shall each constitute grounds for termination without a cure period and without the occurrence of 
any of the other events of default previously listed): 
 
The Consultant makes or allows to be made any material written misrepresentation or provides any 
materially misleading written information in connection with this Agreement, Consultant’s Proposal, or 
any covenant, agreement, obligation, term or condition contained in this Agreement; or 
 
The Consultant takes or fails to take any action which constitutes grounds for immediate termination 
under the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to failure to obtain or maintain the insurance 
policies and endorsements as required by this Agreement, or failure to provide the proof of insurance as 
required by this Agreement. 
 
Cancellation of Orders and Subcontracts. In the event this Agreement is terminated by the Town for any 
reason prior to the end of the term, the Consultant shall upon termination immediately discontinue all 
service in connection with this Agreement and promptly cancel all existing orders and subcontracts, which 
are chargeable to this Agreement. As soon as practicable after receipt of notice of termination, the 
Consultant shall submit a statement to the Town showing in detail the services performed under this 
Agreement to the date of termination. 
 

189



No Effect on Taxes, Fees, Charges, or Reports. Any termination of the Agreement shall not relieve the 
Consultant of the obligation to pay any fees, taxes or other charges then due to the Town, nor relieve the 
Consultant of the obligation to file any daily, monthly, quarterly or annual reports covering the period to 
termination nor relieve the Consultant from any claim for damages previously accrued or then accruing 
against the Consultant. 
 
Obligations Upon Expiration or Termination.  Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, the 
Consultant shall promptly (a) return to the Town all computer programs, files, documentation, data, 
media, related material and any other recording devices, information, or compact discs that are owned by 
the Town; (b) deliver to the Town all Work Product; (c) allow the Town or a new vendor access to the 
systems, software, infrastructure, or processes of the Consultant that are necessary to migrate the Services 
to a new vendor; and (d) refund to the Town all pre-paid sums for Products or Services that have been 
cancelled and will not be delivered.    
 
No Suspension. In the event that the Town disputes in good faith an allegation of default by the 
Consultant, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Consultant agrees that it will 
not terminate this Agreement or suspend or limit the delivery of Products or Services or any warranties or 
repossess, disable or render unusable any Software supplied by the Consultant, unless (i) the parties agree 
in writing, or (ii) an order of a court of competent jurisdiction determines otherwise. 
 
Authority to Terminate. The Town Manager or their designee is authorized to terminate this Agreement 
on behalf of the Town. 
 
Audit. During the term of the Agreement and for a period of one (1) year after termination or expiration of 
this Agreement for any reason, the Town shall have the right to audit, either itself or through a third party, 
all books and records (including but not limited to the technical records) and facilities of the Consultant 
necessary to evaluate Consultant’s compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement or the 
Town’s payment obligations. The Town shall pay its own expenses, relating to such audits, but shall not 
have to pay any expenses or additional costs of the Consultant. However, if non-compliance is found that 
would have cost the Town in excess of $5,000 but for the audit, then the Consultant shall be required to 
reimburse the Town for the cost of the audit. 
 
Remedies 
 
Liquidated Damages: The Town and the Consultant acknowledge and agree that the Town may incur 
costs if the Consultant fails to meet the delivery times set forth in the Request for Proposal for the 
Products and Services.  The parties further acknowledge and agree that: (a) the Town may be damaged by 
such failures, including loss of goodwill and administrative costs; but that (b) the costs that the Town 
might reasonably be anticipated to accrue as a result of such failures are difficult to ascertain due to their 
indefiniteness and uncertainty.  Accordingly, the Consultant agrees to pay liquidated damages at the rates 
set forth in the Request for Proposal (if applicable).  The parties agree that the liquidated damages set 
forth in the Request for Proposal shall be the Town’s exclusive remedy for loss of goodwill and 
administrative costs, attributable to a failure by the Consultant to meet such delivery times, but shall not 
be the remedy for the cost to cover or other direct damages. 
 
Right to Cover:  If the Consultant fails to meet any completion date or resolution time set forth in this 
Agreement (including the Exhibits), and it fails to cure such default within one (1) business day after 
receiving written notice from the Town of such failure, the Town may take any of the following actions 

190



with or without terminating this Agreement, and in addition to and without limiting any other remedies it 
may have: 
 
Employ such means as it may reasonably deem advisable and appropriate to perform itself or obtain the 
Services from a third party until the matter is resolved and the Consultant is again able to resume 
performance under this Agreement; and 
 
Deduct any and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Town in obtaining or performing the Services 
from any money then due or to become due the Consultant and, should the Town’s reasonable cost of 
obtaining or performing the services exceed the amount due the Consultant, collect the difference from the 
Consultant. 
 
Right to Withhold Payment.  If the Consultant materially breaches any provision of this Agreement, the 
Town shall have a right to withhold all payments due to the Consultant with respect to the services that 
are the subject of such breach until such breach has been fully cured. 
 
Specific Performance and Injunctive Relief. The Consultant agrees that due to the potential impact on 
public health, monetary damages may not be an adequate remedy for the Consultant’s failure to provide 
the Services required by this Agreement, and monetary damages may not be the equivalent of the 
performance of such obligation. Accordingly, the Consultant hereby agrees that the Town may seek an 
order granting specific performance of such obligations of the Consultant in a court of competent 
jurisdiction within the State of North Carolina.  The Consultant further consents to the Town seeking 
injunctive relief (including a temporary restraining order) to assure performance in the event the 
Consultant breaches the Agreement in any material respect. 
 
Setoff.  Each party shall be entitled to setoff and deduct from any amounts owed to the other party 
pursuant to this Agreement all damages and expenses incurred as a result of the other party’s breach of 
this Agreement, following any applicable cure periods, and provided such party has given notice of its 
intention to apply a setoff prior to making the payment deduction, together with documentary evidence 
demonstrating that such party has actually incurred the damages and/or expenses being setoff.   
 
Other Remedies.  Except as specifically set forth in the main body of this Agreement, the remedies set 
forth above shall be deemed cumulative and not exclusive and may be exercised successively or 
concurrently, in addition to any other available remedy 
 
Debarment and Suspension 
 
A contract award (see C.R.F. 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide 
exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 
C.F.R. 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.”  SAM exclusions contain the names of 
parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible 
under statutory or regulartory authority other than Executive Order 12549. The Consultant shall certify 
compliance.  
 
This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and 2 C.F.R. Part. 3000. As such, 
the Consultant is required to verify that none of the Consultant, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 

191



180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R.§ 180.940) or 
disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 
 
The Consultant is required to comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, Subpart C 
and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it 
enters into.  By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proper certifies that:  
 
This certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the Town.   If it is later 
determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to 
remedies available by the Town, the federal government may pursue available remedies, including but not 
limited to suspension and/or debarment.  The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements 
of 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Subpart C and 2 C.F.R. Part 3000, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout 
the period of any contract that may arise from this offer.   The bidder or proposer further agrees to include 
a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.” 
 
Equal Employment Opportunity 
 
During the performance of this contract, the Consultant agrees as follows: 
 
1. The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 

race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Consultant will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their 
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the 
following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; 
layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship. The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

 
2. The Consultant will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 

Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

 
3. The Consultant will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 

collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising 
the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Consultant's commitments under this section, 
and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment. 

 
4. The Consultant will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as 

amended by executive Order 11375, and with the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
5. The Consultant will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, 
and orders. 

192



 
6. In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 

with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or 
suspended in whole or in part and the Consultant may be declared ineligible for further Government 
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions as may be imposed and 
remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, 
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 
7. The Consultant will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 

provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by 
rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each sub consultant 
or vendor. The Consultant will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as 
the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 
noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a Consultant becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with, litigation with a sub consultant or vendor as a result of such direction by the 
administering agency the Consultant may request the United States to enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the United States. 

 
 
 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708)  
 

 Where applicable, all contracts awarded in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics 
or laborers must be in compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of 
Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. Part 5).  

1. Overtime requirements. No Consultant or sub Consultant contracting for any part of the contract work 
which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any 
such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in 
excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a 
rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty 
hours in such workweek. 

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set 
forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Consultant and any sub-consultant responsible therefor shall 
be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Consultant and sub-consultant shall be liable to the 
United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to 
such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed 
with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in 
violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar 
day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek 
of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) 
of this section. 

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The Owner shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be 
withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Consultant or sub-

193



consultant under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime Consultant, or 
any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 
which is held by the same prime Consultant, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to 
satisfy any liabilities of such Consultant or subConsultant for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section. 

4. Sub-consultants. The Consultant or sub-consultant shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth 
in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the sub-Consultants to include 
these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Consultant shall be responsible for compliance 
by any sub-consultant or lower tier sub-consultant with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through 
(4) of this section.” 

 

Procurement of Recovered Materials 

Consultant and sub-consultant must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as 
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 
247.  In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable, the Consultant and sub-consultants 
are to use products containing the highest percentage of recovered materials for items designated by the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 40 CFR Part 247 whenever: 
 

1. The contract requires procurement of $10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; 
or 

2. The Consultant has procured $10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding during 
the previous fiscal year. 

 
Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preferences for recovery EPA-Designed products if the 
Consultant can demonstrate the item is: 
 

• Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract 
performance schedule; 

• Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or 
• Is only available at an unreasonable price. 

 
Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA- designate items, is available at EPA’s 
Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-  
procurement-guideline-cpg-program.” 
 
Safeguarding Personal Identifiable Information:   
 
Consultant will take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and 
other information designated as sensitive by the awarding agency or is considered sensitive consistent 
with applicable federal, state, and/or local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 
 

194

https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program


DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags 
 
The Consultant shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS 
agency officials without pre-approval by the specific federal agency. 
 
 

195



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks 

& Recreation 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Resolution authorizing Amendment to existing Aontract for creation of Capital Improvement Plan. 

Action Requested: Approve Resolution and Amendment. 

Attachments: Resolution and Amendment. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks & Recreation Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC: 2/4/2019  FD:   TM: 2/6/2019  Final: 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Parks and Recreation Department (WPR) does not have a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 

A CIP provides guidance, prioritization and timelines, funding needs, etc. related to projects and operations. 

A CIP is a crucial tool for Town and Department planning and fiscal management. 

The Town is currently under contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates (KHA) for creation of the Fork Swamp 

Canal Greenway Plan, which includes three (3) efforts: Winterville Greenway Master Plan, Fork Swamp 

Canal Greenway Plan, and NC Parks and Recreation Trust Fund Grant Application. Due to the nature of 

current planning effort, KHA has become familiar with Town, especially WPR, functions and plans. Because 

of this familiarity, and need for a CIP, Town Staff contacted KHA to determine interest in creation of a CIP, 

potential cost. 

KHA, in response to CIP request, created Amendment Number 1 for creation of a CIP. The maximum fee for 

creation of CIP is $13,350. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Budgetary Impact: No additional funds required as result of contract Amendment 1. 

Recommendation: Town Staff recommends approval of Resolution and Amendment. 

 

196



 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT TO 

EXISTING CONSULTANT CONTRACT FOR CREATION OF 
PARKS AND RECREATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, The Town of Winterville has need for, and desires creation of, a Parks and 

Recreation Department Capital Improvement Plan, and; 
 

WHEREAS, Kimley-Horn and Associates is currently contracted by the Town for the 
Fork Swamp Canal Greenway Plan, Greenway Master Plan, and North Carolina Parks and 
Recreation Trust Fund grant application, collectively referred to as Fork Swamp Canal 
Greenway Plan and; 
 

WHEREAS, Kimley-Horn and Associates is familiar with many Winterville Parks and 
Recreation Department plans and functions as a result of current contracted planning efforts, 
and; 
 

WHEREAS, Town of Winterville Staff contacted Kimley-Horn and Associates regarding 
creation of a Parks and Recreation Department Capital Improvement Plan, and;  
 

WHEREAS, Kimley-Horn and Associates has provided contract Amendment to the Town 
for creation of a Parks and Recreation Department Capital Improvement Plan, and;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Winterville Town Council, in accordance with 
North Carolina General Statute 143-64.32, authorizes Kimley-Horn and Associates to create a 
Town of Winterville Parks and Recreation Department Capital Improvement Plan as outlined in 
Amendment Number 1. 
 
 

Adopted by the Winterville Town Council this the 11th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Amy P. Barrow, Acting Town Clerk 

197



Rev. 7/18

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLIENT AND KIMLEY-HORN
AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

This is Amendment Number 1 dated January 18, 2019 to the Agreement between the Town of
Winterville ("Client") and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. ("Consultant") dated May 29, 2018 (“the
Agreement") concerning the Fork Swamp Canal Greenway (the "Project").

The Consultant has entered into the Agreement with Client for the furnishing of professional
services, and the parties now desire to amend the Agreement.

The Agreement is amended to include services to be performed by Consultant for compensation
as set forth below in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, which are incorporated by
reference.

Consultant will perform the following services:

Develop a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for the Winterville Parks & Recreation Department.
This will include program management, maintaining a capital project listing, developing opinions of
probable project costs, development of timeline, and facilitation of project prioritization as follows:

· Program management will include a kickoff conference call, up to three (3) weekly conference
calls, monthly invoicing, and regular communication and coordination.

· Capital project listing will include preparing preliminary prioritization criteria to evaluate needs,
initial project sheets, and final project sheets for the highest ranked items.

· Cost opinions will include construction cost, engineering/surveying/permitting allowance,
construction inspection and testing allowance, land acquisition allowance, utility relocation
allowance, and inflation contingency.

· Timeline will include overall schedule for delivering projects with consideration of existing
resources, capacity to deliver projects, financial resources, and operational allocation.

· Project prioritization will include project rankings with input from Town staff using corresponding
data, costs, and information.

Consultant and Client agree to the following general schedule in connection with the services set
forth above:

Submit Draft CIP for Town Council consideration in February 2019 and Final CIP for adoption in
March 2019.

For the services set forth above, Client shall pay Consultant the following compensation:

Kimley-Horn will perform the Services on a labor fee plus expense basis with the maximum fee of
$13,350.00.  Kimley-Horn will not exceed the total maximum fee shown without authorization from
the Client.

Labor fee will be billed on an hourly basis according to our then-current hourly rates, which are
subject to annual adjustment.  Direct reimbursable expenses such as express delivery services,
fees, and other direct expenses will be billed at 1.10 times cost.  A percentage of labor fee (4.6%)
is included to cover certain other expenses as to these tasks such as telecommunications, in-house
reproduction, postage, supplies, project related computer time, and local mileage.  All permitting,
application, and similar project fees will be paid directly by the Client.

198



Rev. 7/18

Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the invoice and should include the invoice
number and Kimley-Horn project number.

CLIENT: CONSULTANT:

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

By: By:

Name: Name: Jeffrey W. Moore, P.E.

Title: Title: Senior Vice President

Date: Date: January 18, 2019

199



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: February 12, 2018 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town 

Manager 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Wooten Company – Task Order No. 25 – Standard Construction Specifications and Details Update. 

Action Requested: Approval of Task Order. 

Attachments: Engineering Services Agreement. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD   TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Council entered into an agreement with the Wooten Company for general consulting services related to 

engineering on a case-by-case basis for smaller projects. The current agreement for general consulting 

services contract is through June 30, 2019. 

The subject Task Order No. 25 is for updating the Town’s existing Standard Specifications Manual and 

Details for Water, Sewer, Roadways and Storm Drainage Systems. The current Manual is outdated and staff 

does not have any way to modify it or update it as needed. The Town will be provided with a new Manual in 

an editable format. The consultant will also provide a pdf that can be distributed to local developers, 

engineers, and contractors, as well as added to the Town’s website for easy access. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Budgetary Impact: This work will be done on an hourly basis with a not to exceed cost of $40,000. $50,000 

for this project was included in the approved budget for this fiscal year. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of contract. 

 

200



201



202



203



204



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks 

& Recreation 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Appointment to Recreation Advisory Board. 

Action Requested: Appoint Dr. Alexis Davis to vacant Non-Resident position on the Recreation Advisory 

Board. 

Attachments: Application on file, Dr. Alexis Davis. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks & Recreation Date: 1/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 2/4/2019  FD   TM 2/6/2019  Final 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

There are currently two (2) vacant Non-Resident positions on the Recreation Advisory Board (RAB). At this 

time, there is one (1) application of file in which applicant noted interest in serving on the RAB. 

Staff has reviewed the application on file and recommends Dr. Alexis Davis be appointed to fill a vacant 

Non-Resident position. Staff believes Dr. Davis will make a great addition to the RAB! 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Appoint Dr. Alexis Davis to Non-Resident position on the Recreation Advisory Board. 

 

205



206



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works 

Director 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Clarification of Speed Limit Ordinances on Mill Street, Church Street, and Reedy Branch Road. 

Action Requested: Approval of Ordinances. 

Attachments: Municipal Certifications and Maps, Memorandum. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 1/31/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC: 2/4/2019  FD:   TM 2/6/2019  Final: 2/6/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

 

Based on a request from the Town Council the NCDOT is moving forward with installing speed limit signs on 

Mill Street at Reedy Branch Road. While investigating this request it was discovered that several of the 

speed limit ordinances for DOT streets within the Town limits had not been updated as the Town limits 

expanded. When an NCDOT street is annexed into the Town limits the default speed limit is automatically 35 

MPH. The NCDOT has requested that Council approve the attached ordinances such that they match the 

new corporate limits and speed limit signs can be updated accordingly based on NCDOT recommendations. 

The ordinances are described in the attached memo. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Approval of Ordinances. 

 

207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



 

Memorandum 

To: Town Council 

From: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Date: February 1, 2019 

Subject: Speed Limits on NCDOT Streets in Town Limits 

The NCDOT is recommending that speed limit ordinances be adopted for Mill Street, Church Street, 

and Reedy Branch Rd. within the Town’s corporate limits in order to update the speed limit on these 

streets due to changes in the Town’s corporate limits. When an NCDOT street is annexed into the 

Town’s limits the speed limit automatically becomes 35 MPH unless both the Town and NCDOT adopt 

an ordinance establishing a lower or high speed limit. The following ordinances are proposed by 

NCDOT to establish appropriate speed limits on the new sections of these streets that have been 

annexed into the Town since the last ordinances were adopted. 

 

1. Ordinance #1036308 is the existing ordinance for the 45 MPH zone on Mill St. from Worthington St. to 

the old corporate limits south of Vernon White Rd. This ordinance will need to be repealed and a new 

ordinance (#1074824) approved. The new ordinance simply extends the 45 MPH zone to the end of Mill 

St. at Winterville Parkway since the entire street is now within the corporate limits. 

2. Ordinance #1036319 is proposed by NCDOT to repeal the 25 MPH zone on Mill St. that extends 750 LF in 

either direction from its’ intersection with Main St. This ordinance was adopted in 1997 however it does 

not appear that signage was ever installed or the speed limit enforced. DOT recommends repealing this 

ordinance such that this section of road will revert back to a 35 MPH speed limit, which is in essence 

what it has been enforced as the entire time. 

3. Ordinance #1036309 is the existing ordinance for the 45 MPH zone on Mill St. south of Liberty Street. 

Currently this zone extends southward from Liberty St. to a point slightly south of Laurie Ellis Rd. which 

was the old corporate limits. NCDOT proposes to repeal this ordinance and enact a new ordinance that 

extends the 45 MPH zone further south to the new corporate limits (Ordinance #1074825). The new 45 

MPH zone will be from a point 150 LF south of Liberty St. to a point 175 LF south of Emily Dr. Proposed 

Ordinance #1074826 will cover the remaining portion of Mill St. out to Reedy Branch Rd. and this 

portion will remain at 55 MPH. 

 

 

 
  

 
 

2571 Railroad Street Phone: (252) 215-2344 
PO Box 1459 Fax: (252) 215-2450 
Winterville, NC 28590 www.wintervillenc.com 
  

220



4. Ordinance #1074827 is proposed to enact a 55 MPH speed limit on Church St. from Reedy Branch Rd. to 

a point approximately 1,700 LF south of Laurie Ellis Rd. This is due to the change in the corporate limits 

and is recommended by NCDOT. 

5. Ordinance #1074828 is proposed to enact a 45 MPH speed limit on Church St. from Laurie Ellis Rd. to a 

point approximately 1,700 LF south of Laurie Ellis Rd. This is due to the change in the corporate limits 

and is recommended by NCDOT. 

6. Ordinance #1074829 is proposed to establish a 55 MPH speed limit on Reedy Branch Rd. from a point 

900 LF east of Church St. all the way to Mill St. This is due to a change in the corporate limits and is 

recommended by NCDOT. 

7. Ordinance #1074830 is proposed to establish a speed limit of 50 MPH on Reedy Branch Rd. from Mill St. 

to Winterville Parkway per NCDOT recommendation. 

221


	00-Agenda 02112019 Final
	06-1-a-Agenda Abstract-02112019-Proclamation v2
	06-1-b-Proclamation-Black History Month 02112019
	07-1-a-Davis Rezoning PZ Abstract v2
	07-1-b-Davis Rezoning Application
	07-1-c-Davis Rezoning Map
	07-1-d-Davis Rezoning Legal Description
	07-1-e-Adjoining Land Owners
	08-1-Public Comment-Gary Whitehurst
	08-2-Public Comment-Valerie Tyson
	09-1-a-Agenda Abstract-02112019-Jan Minutes v2
	09-1-b-Regular Meeting Minutes 01142019 Final Draft
	09-2-a-Abstract-Budget Amendment 18-19-3 v2
	09-2-b-Budget Amendment 2018-2019-3
	09-3-a-Abstract-Release of Deliquent Fire Inspections Jan v2
	09-3-b-Unpaid Fire Insp
	09-4-a-CRI Audit Contract 2018 Amendment v2-abstract
	09-4-b-Winterville Amended Contract 2018
	09-5-a-Mellon Downs Ph2A-2B Annexation-2nd Phase Abstract v2
	09-5-b-Mellon Downs Annexation Map -2nd Phase- 31 Parcels
	09-5-c-Signed Petitions (31)- 2nd Phase
	09-5-d-01242019 19-R-011 Res Mellon Downs Invest Annex exec
	09-5-e-01302019 Cert of Suff-Mellon Downs exec
	09-6-a-Worthington Road Corridor Study-Pro Services Agree-Abstract v2
	09-6-b-Worthington Rd Corridor Study Contract
	09-6-c-Worthington Road Scope 012919
	09-6-d-Worthington Rd Corridor Study Cost Summary
	09-7-a-Abstract Form for Monitoring Contract v2
	09-7-b-Vaugn & Melton Proposal
	09-7-c-RFP 2018 Disaster Debris Monitoring Consulting - Final
	NORTH CAROLINA
	Town of Winterville Purchasing Department
	This certification requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs.   Consultants that apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification required by 49 C.F.R. part 20, “New Restrictions on Lob...
	1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress...
	2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employe...
	3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all ...
	1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. CONSULTANT hereby agrees to provide the services and/or materials under this Contract pursuant to the provisions identified in Attachment 1 “Scope of Services” (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Services”) and Attachment 2...
	Authorizations for Services shall be referred to as “Task Orders.” Each Task Order form shall set forth a specific Scope of Services, amount of compensation and completion date.
	2. TERM OF CONTRACT. The Term of this Contract for services is from__________, 2018 to ______________, 2023, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.
	This Contract is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified services and may be terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days’ notice if such funds become unavailable.
	3. ACTIVATION OF CONTRACT.  Should activation of a contract become necessary, the TOWN and CONSULTANT will negotiate a “Fixed Price” amount for the services required within this Agreement. This Contract is deemed activated upon the agreement of fixed ...
	4. COMPENSATION. CONTRACTOR shall receive from TOWN an amount not to exceed                            _____________________________ ($ ____________) as full compensation for the provision of Services.  TOWN agrees to pay CONTRACTOR at the rates speci...
	5. TIME FOR COMPLETION.  Time is of the essence and the Consultant shall begin work immediately following issuance of a written Task Order.  All services shall be completed in accordance with the project schedule associated with each Task Order.
	6. INVOICES. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoice for services rendered.  Invoices shall include a statement of progress and appropriate detail to satisfy Town and current FEMA requirements. Invoices must reference the Purchase Order number.
	7. RETAINAGE. The TOWN may retain five percent (5%) of the value of each Task Order until such time as the project deliverables, as defined in the Task Order, are completed to reasonable professional standards and all sub-consultants and material supp...
	8. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. TOWN and CONSULTANT agree that CONSULTANT is an independent Consultant and shall not represent itself as an agent or employee of TOWN for any purpose in the performance of CONSULTANT’s duties under this Contract.  Accordingl...
	9. STANDARD OF CARE. CONSULTANT will perform services under this Agreement with the degree of skill and diligence normally practiced by professional CONSULTANTS performing the same or similar services and CONSULTANT shall, at no additional cost to the...
	ATTACHMENT 1
	ATTACHMENT 2
	Federal Contracting Requirements
	This Attachment 2 is incorporated into the Service Contract between the Town and the Consultant.  Capitalized terms not defined in this Attachment shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Contract.  All references to the “Consultant” or “...
	This Contract will be funded in whole or in part with federal funding.  As such, federal laws, regulations, policies and related administrative practices apply to this Contract.  The most recent of such federal requirements, including any amendments m...
	To the extent possible, the federal requirements contained in the most recent version of  the Uniform Administrative Requirements for federal awards (Uniform Rules) codified at 2.C.F.R., Part 200, including any certifications and contractual provision...
	Energy Conservation
	The Consultant and Sub-consultants agrees to comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 ...
	Federal Water Pollution Control Act
	For contracts in excess of $150,000, the Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.
	The Consultant agrees to report each violation to the Town and understands and agrees that the Town will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Prote...
	The Consultant agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.”
	Clean Air Act
	For contracts in excess of $150,000, the Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. and the Federal Water Pollution Act as amended (33 USC...
	The Consultant agrees to report any violation to the Town immediately upon discovery.  The Consultant understands and agrees that the Town will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the County, Federal Emergency Managem...
	Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA- designate items, is available at EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-  procurement-guideline-cpg-program.”
	Safeguarding Personal Identifiable Information:
	Consultant will take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other information designated as sensitive by the awarding agency or is considered sensitive consistent with applicable federal, state, and/or local...
	DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags
	The Consultant shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without pre-approval by the specific federal agency.

	10-1-a-Abstract-Amendment to Contract for Creation of CIP v2
	10-1-b-02112019 Resolution ParksRec Capital Improvement Plan
	10-1-c-Amendment1_CIP (2019-01-18)
	11-1-a-Agenda Abstract-20190130-Wooten TO No 25-Standard Construction v2
	11-1-b-Task Order No. 25 - Standard Construction Spec and Details Update
	11-2-a-Abstract RAB Appointment 1-30-19 v2
	11-2-b-RAB Application
	11-3-a-Abstract-NCDOT Speed Limits v2
	11-3-b-Municipal Certifications and Maps
	11-3-c-Memorandum

	Name of Applicant:    Valerie Tyson
	Date:    2/5/2019
	Address:   Greenville, NC
	Phone: 814-1834
	Meeting Date:   February 11, 2019
	Description: Update on Space Dedication for Ronnie "Run" Cox.
	Speaker 1:   Valerie Tyson
	Speaker 2: 
	Speaker 3: 
	Signature: Valerie Tyson
	Print: 
	Save: 
	Submit: 
	Fiscal Year Ending: June 30, 2018
	Date Modification: Yes
	Audit Report Due Date: October 31, 2018
	Modified due date: January 31, 2019
	Fee Modification: Off
	Fee per original contract: 
	Modified fee: 
	Explanation: The audit service delivery date was affected by two events – 1) Hurricane Florence in the fall of 2018 and 2) implementation of GASB 75 and obtaining the valuation.  As such, we are seeking to modify the due date of the audit report until January 31, 2019. 
	Auditor: Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC
	Audit Firm Rep: Michael C. Jordan
	Audit Firm Date: 1/31/2019
	Auditor Email: mjordan@cricpa.com
	Primary Government Unit: Town of Winterville
	Date Unit Approved Contract: 
	Mayor/Chair: Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor
	Mayor/Chair Date: 1/31/2019
	Mayor/Chair Email: doug.jackson@wintervillenc.com
	Audit Committee Chair: N/A
	Audit Committee Date: 
	Audit Committee Email: 
	Unit Finance Officer: Anthony Bowers
	Unit Pre-Audit Certificate Date: 1/31/2019
	Unit Finance Officer Email: anthony.bowers@wintervillenc.com
	DPCU: N/A
	DPCU Board Approval Date: 
	DPCU Chairperson: 
	DPCU Date: 
	DPCU Email Address: 
	DPCU Audit Committee Chair: 
	DPCU Audit Committee Date: 
	DPCU Audit Committee Email: 
	DPCU Finance Officer: 
	DPCU Pre-Audit Certificate Date: 
	DPCU Finance Officer Email: 


